
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS 
AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING 

 
Tuesday, October 13th, 2015, 7:00 pm 

7217 - 4th Street, City Hall 

 
 ITEM SUBJECT MATTER RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER   

 
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA   
 
 

 
a) Adopt agenda  

 

October 13th, 2015, Regular 
Meeting agenda 

THAT Council adopt the 
October 13th, 2015, Regular 
Meeting agenda as 
presented. 

 
3. MINUTES   
 
 

 
a) Adopt minutes 

Minutes - Special Meeting To Go In-
Camera - 1 Sept 2015  

 

September 1st, 2015, Special 
Meeting to go In-Camera 
minutes 

THAT Council adopt the 
September 1st, 2015, Special 
Meeting to go In-Camera 
minutes as presented. 

 
 

 
b) Adopt minutes 

Minutes - Special Meeting To Go In-
Camera - 9 Sept 2015  

 

September 9th, 2015, Special 
Meeting to go In-Camera 
minutes 

THAT Council adopt the 
September 9th, 2015, Special 
Meeting to go In-Camera 
minutes as presented. 

 
 

 
c) Adopt minutes 

Minutes - Committee of the Whole 
Meeting - 14 Sept 2015  

 

September 14th, 2015, 
Committee of the Whole 
Meeting minutes 

THAT Council adopt the 
September 14th, 2015, 
Committee of the Whole 
Meeting minutes as 
presented. 

 
 

 
d) Adopt minutes 

Minutes - Regular Meeting - 14 Sept 
2015  

 

September 14th, 2015, 
Regular Meeting minutes 

THAT Council adopt the 
September 14th, 2015, 
Regular Meeting minutes as 
presented. 

 
4. REGISTERED PETITIONS AND 

DELEGATIONS 
  

 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 
6. REPORTS, QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES 

FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL  
  

 
 

 
a) Corporate Officer's Report 

RFD - Proc. Bylaw-CAO - Rpts., 
Questions, & Inquiries from Council 
Mayor Konrad's Report 
Councillor Thompson's Report 
Councillor Ross's Report  

 

Written reports of Council THAT all written reports of 
Council be received.  
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7. REPORT FROM COUNCIL'S 

REPRESENTATIVE TO THE REGIONAL 
DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY 

  

 
 

 
a) Corporate Officer's Report 

RFD - Proc. Bylaw-Council - RDKB 
Council's Rep.  

 

Verbal report from Council's 
representative to the 
Regional District of Kootenay 
Boundary 

THAT Councillor Krog's report 
on the activities of the 
Regional District of Kootenay 
Boundary, given verbally at 
this meeting be received. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STAFF FOR 

DECISIONS 
  

 
 

 
a) Manager of Development & 

Engineering Services 
RFD - Mgr of Dev & Eng - Valley 
Heights Dev. Applic. for Strata 
Conversion  

 

Valley Heights Developments 
application for strata 
conversion 

THAT Council approve the 
strata conversion application 
of a commercial/residential 
building located at 7330 
Riverside Drive and direct the 
Approving Officer to sign the 
Form T "Endorsement by 
Approving Officer", certifying 
that the conversion has been 
approved, in accordance with 
Section 242 of the Strata 
Property Act. 

 
 

 
b) Manager of Development & 

Engineering Services 
RFD - Mgr of Dev & Eng - Valley 
Heights Dev. Applic. for DVP  

 

Application for a 
Development Variance Permit 
to request an increase in the 
ratio of apartments to the 
principal building from 30% to 
50% to allow for the current 
four apartments upstairs to 
remain and to comply with the 
Zoning Bylaw 

THAT Council considers the 
Development Variance Permit 
application and selects one of 
the presented options. 

 
 

 
c) Manager of Development & 

Engineering Services 
RFD - Mgr of Dev & Eng - PA's 
Request for Mortgage of Lease with 
Community Futures  

 

Approval from Council to 
permit Granby River Mining 
Company Inc. to enter into a 
Mortgage of Lease 
Agreement with Community 
Futures Development 
Corporation in order to secure 
financial funding for plant 
upgrades at its operations in 
Grand Forks and approval for 
the City to enter into a Non-
Disturbance Agreement with 
Community Futures 

THAT Council permit Granby 
River Mining Company Inc. to 
enter into a Mortgage of 
Lease Agreement with 
Community Futures 
Development Corporation in 
order to secure financial 
funding for plant upgrades at 
its operations in Grand Forks; 
AND FURTHER THAT 
Council approve the City 
entering into a Non-
Disturbance Agreement with 
Community Futures. 

 
 

 
d) Manager of Operations 

RFD - Manager of Operations - 
Electric Vehicle and Charging Update  

 

Electric Vehicle and Charging 
Update 

THAT Council approves 
amending the 2015 Financial 
Plan from the Equipment 
Replacement Fund to include 
the additional costs of up to 
$15,000 for the purchase of 
an electric vehicle. 
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9. REQUESTS ARISING FROM 

CORRESPONDENCE 
  

 

 
10. INFORMATION ITEMS   
 
 

 
a) Nadine Heiberg 

SOII - Heiberg, Nadine re Common 
Law & City  

 

Letter regarding Common 
Law and the City of Grand 
Forks over the years 

THAT Council receive for 
information. 

 
 

 
b) Meeting minutes 

SOII - Transition Housing Project 
Steering Committee Minutes - June 
23, Aug. 5, Sept. 15, and Sept. 16  

 

Meeting minutes of June 
23rd, August 5th, September 
15th, and September 16th 
held with the Transition 
Housing Project Steering 
Committee 

THAT Council receive for 
information. 

 
 

 
c) Regional District of Okanagan-

Similkameen 
SOII - Reg. District of Okanagan-
Similkameen Deer Committee Mtg. 
Oct. 21st  

 

Deer Committee Meeting in 
Penticton, BC on October 
21st 

THAT Council receive for 
information. Council to advise 
on attendance. 

 
 

 
d) Sunshine Valley Women's Institute 

SOII - Sunshine Valley Women's 
Institute re Sidewalk Request Silver 
Kettle  

 

Request to build a sidewalk 
along the road in front of the 
Silver Kettle Village 

THAT Council receive for 
information. Council to 
determine if they wish to refer 
this to the 2016 Budgeting 
process. 

 
 

 
e) Grand Forks ATV Club 

SOII - Invitation to Grand Opening for 
Bluejoint Rec. Site  

 

Letter of invitation to the 
Grand Opening for the 
Bluejoint Recreation Site 

THAT Council receive for 
information. Council to note 
the open invitation for 
October 15th. 

 
 

 
f) Scott Davis 

SOII - Davis, Scott re Asset Mgmt. 
Plan Concerns  

 

Letter of concern regarding 
current Asset Management 
Plan 

THAT Council receive for 
information. 

 
 

 
g) Visland Media 

SOII - Home Building Competition - 
Eco Reality TV Show  

 

Alex Miller is requesting a 
non-binding letter of support 
for a potential television show 
based on a reality TV show 
for an eco home building 
competition 

THAT Council receives for 
information and determines to 
provide a non-binding letter of 
support to Visland Media for 
the proposed tiny eco home 
series to take place in the 
City of Grand Forks.  
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11. BYLAWS   
 
 

 
a) Manager of Building Inspections & 

Bylaw Services 
Bylaw 1957 A-3 - Mgr. of Bylaw Serv. 
- MTI  Bylaw 1957 A-3 Final Reading  

 

Amendment Bylaw No. 1957 
A-3 to the Municipal Ticketing 
& Information Bylaw No. 1957 

THAT Council receive the 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1957 
A-3 of the Municipal Ticketing 
& Information Bylaw No. 
1957. City Council has given 
the Bylaw Amendment the 
first three readings at the 
September 14, 2015, Regular 
Meeting. Council may 
consider giving the 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1957 
A-3 the final reading at the 
October 13th, 2015, Regular 
Meeting of City Council. 

 
 

 
b) Manager of Operations 

Bylaw 1973-A1 - Manager of 
Operations - RFD -Water Regulations  

 

Water Regulations Bylaw No. 
1973-A1 

THAT Council give final 
reading to Bylaw No. 1973-A1 
Water Regulations Bylaw. 

 
 

 
c) Corporate Services 

Bylaw 1999 - Corporate Services - 
RFD -Elections Procedure Bylaw  

 

Council's consideration to 
approve existing Bylaw No. 
1999 as the Election's Bylaw 
for the upcoming By-Election 

THAT Council determines 
that Bylaw No. 1999, "A 
bylaw to provide for the 
determination of various 
procedures for the conduct of 
local government elections 
and other voting", is 
satisfactory as the bylaw to 
be utilized for the upcoming 
by-election. 

 
 

 
d) Chief Financial Officer 

Bylaw 2018 - CFO - 2016 Permissive 
Tax Exemptions  

 

2016 Permissive Tax 
Exemption Bylaw No. 2018 

THAT Council give first three 
readings to Bylaw No. 2018 - 
2016 Permissive Tax 
Exemptions. 

 
 

 
e) Chief Financial Officer 

Bylaw 2020 - CFO - RFD -Community 
Works Reserve Fund  

 

Bylaw 2020 to Establish 
Community Works Reserve 
Fund 

THAT Council give final 
reading to Community Works 
Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw 2020, 2015. 

 
12. LATE ITEMS   

 
13. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC AND THE 

MEDIA 
  

 
14. ADJOURNMENT   
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Councillor Butler advised that she opposed the motio

3. LATE ITEMS

4. ADJOURNMENT

a) The Meeting was adjourned at 10:02 AM

MOTION ROSS

RESOLVED THAT the meeting be adjourned at 10:02 AM
CARRIED.

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 SPECIAL MEETING TO GO IN-CAMERA

MAYOR FRANK KONRAD CORPORATE OFFICER -

Page 8 of 290



Page 9 of 290



DOPTEDTOCHANGE
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0 have the situation addressed.forced to apply to the Labour Relations Board t

- question asked why the administration answers the CUPE members questions and
not Council directly? Mayor replied that under the Collective Agreement, Union does
not address Council. Council is aware In-Camera and encourage communication is
respectful in a safe workplace.

- air quality during the fires, Interior Health involvement during this health hazard,
communication through the Regional District.

- will the counting during the bi-election be done electronically or manually? Acting
CAO gave the explanation of the process.

b) Mayor Konrad recused himself from the COTW Meeting at 10:35 am
Councillor Hammett became Acting Mayor.

- discussion regarding water meters, engineer reports, residential use, cost-effective
evaluation, conservation, previous Council decision, Stage 2 Watering Restrictions

Mayor Konrad returned to the COT\N Meeting at 10:48 am

- Manager of Operations spoke in regards to the inquiry of door-to-door patrol of
checking electrical meters

- Steven Howard, Chief Shop Steward for CUPE local 4728 asked what the best way
to bring forth any concerns to Council would be? Mayor Konrad replied that concerns
would be channelled through Administration staff. Mr. Howard said that this is a bit of
a communication challenge. Mayor Konrad replied that then you would have to utilize
the means through your Employment Agreement.

12. ADJOURNMENT

The Mayor adjourned the COTW Meeting at 10:50 am
CARRIED

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

Page 6 of 6

CORPORATE ADMINISTRATIVE
MAYOR FRANK KONRAD ASSISTANT — POPOFF
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MOTION: HAMMETT/ THOMPSON

RESOLVED THAT all written reports of Council be received.
CARRIE
D

7 REPORT FROM COUNCIL'S REPRESENTATIVE TO THE REGIONAL DISTRICT
OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY

a) Corporate Officer's Report
Verbal report from Council's representative to the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary
Councillor Krog is absent and the Acting CAO advised that:
o The City will be donating a gift basket to UBCM and that elected officials who are

attending are asked to assist with manning the booth

MOTION: THOMPSON / ROSS

RESOLVED THAT the report on the activities of the Regional District of Kootenay
Boundary, given verbally at this meeting be received.

CARRIED

8. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STAFF FOR DECISIONS

a) Corporate Services
Volunteer Appreciation Night - Call for Nominations - Policy #204

MOTION: THOMPSON / BUTLER

RESOLVED THAT Council provides notice to the public calling for nominations from
the public for exceptional volunteer service in the City of Grand Forks in accordance
with Council Policy #204.

CARRIED

b) Chief Financial Officer
Appointments of City of Grand Forks Voting Delegates for the Municipal Insurance
Association Annual Meeting

Council discussed this request and past practice. Councillor Thompson volunteered to
be the voting delegate.

MOTION: THOMPSON I BUTLER

RESOLVED THAT Council receives the staff report and resolves to appoint Councillor
Thompson as the Voting Delegate at the 2015 MIABC Annual General Meeting, and
appoints Councillor Ross and Mayor Konrad as the alternates.

SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 REGULAR
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c) Chief Financial Officer
Rescind Policy #1205

MOTION: THOMPSON / BUTLER

RESOLVED THAT Council rescind Policy #1205 - Public Works-Electrical Utility Rate
Increases.

CARRIE
D

cl) Chief Financial Officer
Travel Policy #112 Amendment

MOTION: THOMPSON / HAMMETT

RESOLVED THAT Council adopt Policy #112-A1 - Travel Allowances Expenses.
CARRIED

9. REQUESTS ARISING FROM CORRESPONDENCE

10. INFORMATION ITEMS

a) Vancouver Island Building Trades
Letter to Prime Minister Stephen Harper regarding asbestos awareness and registries

MOTION: BUTLER / HAMMETT

RESOLVED THAT Council receive for information.
CARRIED.

b) Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure
New Building Canada Fund - Small Communities Fund Project - Wastewater
Treatment Plant Ultra-Violet Disinfection

MOTION: BUTLER / THOMPSON

RESOLVED THAT Council receive for information.
CARRIED

SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 REGULAR MEETING
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SUBJECTTO HANGECERTIFIED CORRECT:

MAYOR FRANK KONRAD

SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 REGULAR MEETING

ACTING CORPORATE OFFICER —

SARAH

Page 21 of 290



Page 22 of 290



/°5’”

/ Q 2.n@%rn C1'1TefAdministra‘iWédfficer

REQUESTFORDECISION
— REGULARMEETING-
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To: Mayor and Council

From: Procedure Bylaw / Chief AdministrativeOfficer

Date: October 13"‘,2015

Subject: Reports, Questions and Inquiries from the Members of Council

Recommendation RESOLVED THAT ALL WRITTEN REPORTS SUBMITTED BY
MEMBERS OF COUNCIL,BE RECEIVED.

BACKGROUND: Under the City’s Procedures Bylaw No. 1946, 2013, the Order of Business permits
the members of Council to report to the Community on issues, bring community issues for discussion
and initiate action through motions of Council, ask questions on matters pertaining to the Cit

yOperations and inquire on any issues and reports.

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:

General: The main advantage of using this approach is to bring the matter before Council on behalf
of constituents. Immediate action might result in inordinate amount of resource inadvertently directed
without specific approval in the financial plan.

Strategic Impact: Members of Council may ask questions, seek clarification and report on issues.

Policy/Legislation: The Procedure Bylaw is the governing document setting out the Order of
Business at a Council meeting.

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT ALL WRITTEN REPORTS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF
COUNCIL, BE RECEIVED.

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT ALL WRITTEN REPORTS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF
COUNCIL,BE RECEIVED

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL DOES NOT RECEIVE THE REPORTS FROM
MEMBERS OF NCIL.

ent Heador CAO
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(c) the access is located and maintained as necessary to prevent pollution

From the Office of Linda Larson, MLA
“Access to water for cattle is under Water Act (FLNRO) and Agriculture Waste Control
Regulation (MoE) on private land and Range Act (FLNRO) on Crown land. Pollution i

snot to occur regardless of ownership of land. Stream bank degradation is not

to occur regardless of Act. Some manure and urine is bound to enter the stream if cattle
are accessing the stream for water, they may trample of graze the stream bank
vegetation as well. We have education materials available inside and out of the EFP
(Environmental Farm Plan) program to help the ranchers (and others) understand what
is acceptable from a BMP (Best Management Practices) standpoint. Ranchers can
access off stream watering and riparian fencing/planting BMP’s.

The producer could be directed to EFP Program or BC Cattlemen’s for guidance if they
do not want to deal directly with government. If pollution is occurring the observer of the
pollution can report it to MOE.”

Also see:Farm|and — Riparian Interface Stewardship Program-
http://www.cattlemen.bc.ca/docs/frisp brochure iuly 20 2009.pdf
SUMMARY OF ABOVE: repairing riparian interface is at the discretion of the
landowner. Funds are available, but a specific project case must be presented.
Currently, unaware as to how much funding is available.
ALSO,
The BC Water Act
- Under the Water Act a “stream” includes a natural watercourse or source of water
supply, whether usually containing water or not. This includes ground water, and a lake,
river, creek, spring, ravine, swamp, or gulch.
- Section 9 of the Water Act requires that a person may only make “changes in and
about a stream” under an Approval in accordance with Part 7 of the water regulation,
including Notification where required, or under a Water License or Order. Information on
Section 9 can be found at htto://www env.oov bc.ca/wsd/water riohtsl
Iicence_app|ication/section9/index.htm

According to Best Management Practices Document, Section 7, Aquatic and Riparian
Ecosystems- Deleterious substance: Any substance that, if added to water, would
degrade or alter the quality of the water so that it becomes damaging to fish or fish
habitat, or becomes unsuitable for human consumption or any other purpose for which it
is legally licensed (such as
irrigation and livestock watering). SUMMARY: There is no mandate to address
“deletrious” substances from livestock in this Act.

Waste Management Act of BC, July 2004/Phosphorus Considerations for Nutrient
Management Nutrient Management Factsheet — No. 6 in Series— Movement of soil P
into freshwater lakes or streams can speed up eutrophication, associated with algal
blooms followed by depletions in the water’s oxygen supply caused by the a|gae’s death
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REQUESTFORDECISION
— REGULARMEETING-
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To: Mayor and Council

From: Procedure Bylaw / Council

Date: October 13"‘,2015

Subject: Report — from the Council’s Representative to the Regional District of
Kootenay Boundary

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCILLOR KROG’S REPORT ON THE
ACTIVITIES OF THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY
BOUNDARY, GIVEN VERBALLY AT THIS MEETING BE
RECEIVED.

BACKGROUND: Under the City’s Procedures Bylaw No. 1946, 2013, the Order of Business permits
the City’s representative to the Regional District of Kootenay to report to Council and the Community
on issues, and actions of the Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:
General: The main advantage is that all of Council and the Public is provided with information on the
Regional District of Kootenay Boundary.

PolicyILegislation: The Procedure Bylaw is the governing document setting out the Order of
Business at a Council meeting.

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCILLOR KROG’S REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES O
FTHE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY, GIVEN VERBALLY AT THIS MEETING B
ERECEIVED.

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCILLOR KROG’S REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF TH
EREGIONAL DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY, GIVEN VERBALLY AT THI

SMEETING BE RECEIVED.

2. RECEIVE THE REPORT AND REFER ANY ISSUES FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION
OR A REPORT: UNDER THIS OPTION, COUNCIL PROVIDED WITH TH

EINFORMATION GIVEN VERBALLY BY THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY
BOUNDARY DIRECTOR REPRESENTING COUNCIL AND REQUESTS FURTHER
RESEARCH OR CLARIFICATIONOF INFORMATION FROM STAFF ON A REGIONAL
DISTRICT ISSUE

Head or CAO
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING—

v.\

Financial:

PolicylLegislation

Attachments:

Recommendation:

OPTIONS:

Now that the building has been restored, the assessments wil
lincrease, which in turn would see an increase in taxes payable.

The Strata Property Act governs approvals for conversion of previously
occupied buildings and the City’s Strata Title Conversion Policy #1502
establishes a procedure for dealing with strata applications.

1) Application for Strata Conversion;
2) Site plans of the property in question and graphic

representation showing the building after restoration;
3) Excerpts from the Sustainable Community Plan and the Zoning

bylaw;
4) A completed Schedule 1 Site Profile;
5) WSA Engineering's report;
6) CMHC Rental Market report;
7) Excerpts from the Strata Property Act and a copy of the Strata

Conversion Policy.

RESOLVED THAT Council approve the strata conversion application
of a commercial/residential building located at 7330 Riverside Driv

eand direct the Approving Officer to sign the Form T “Endorsement by
Approving Officer”, certifying that the conversion has been approved,
in accordance with Section 242 of the Strata Property Act.

1. COUNCIL CHOOSES TO SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION.

2. COUNCIL CHOOSES TO NOT SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION

3. COUNCIL CHOOSES TO REFER THE REPORT BACK TO STAFF
FOR MORE INFORMATION.

Department ief ministrative r

Page 41 of 290
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PRELIMINARYACCEPTANCE OF A SUBDIVISION
OR APPLICATION FOR STRATA CONVERSION

. 1 £/7 ; EA - I 26/3

A/aueq\‘He-:3'3»/oQop2vv\.e,«Jc(I4c,_.

+ Legal Description Property or StrataL0‘D\sM¢3<l»,o¥§ aanasg5. Y.b.‘7E'?P

Eats

Total Subdivision Fees

Ap I" anfs/Agent's

Appn/aving

SCHEDULE “A
”

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GRAND FORKS

Receipt No Date

Applicant’s Name: (1143

Applicant’s Address: 50X 343: COWLVLA/5-(ks ?>C, K/DHWIO

Agent for Applicant:

Agent's Address:

of to be Subdivided Converted
4-Cll9Z(o

Civic or Street Address: '4-330vurstzln“bf

Current Zoning of Property CC
lNVe hereby apply for preliminary acceptance of a subdivision or strata conversion of the above-described property
and as shown on the attached plan. The subdivision will be in accordance with Bylaw No. 1424 and any
amendments thereto.

Examination Fee (?rst lot- non refundable) $100.00
Additional Created ($100.00 x lots)

(non refundable)

Of

Application for strata conversion

signature

NOTE TO APPLICANT:
0 Applicant must provide a site pro?le to the Of?cer when applying

for subdivisionof land that was used for industrial or commercial purposes or
activities.

0 Approval of preliminary application for subdivision is only valid for 3 months
from date of acceptance.

0 Fonn T approval of strata conversion is only valid for 6 months from date of
acceptance.
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listed:

SCHEDULE “A” page 2

DECLARATIONPURSUANT TO WASTEMANAGEMENTACT

I/\Ne, owner/agent of the subject property
described this application hereby declare that the land which is the
subject of this application has not, to my knowledge, been used for industrial or
commercial activity as de?ned in the list of "|ndustrial Purposes and Activities"
(Schedule 2) of the ContaminatedSites Regulation (B.C. Reg. 375/96). I
therefore declare that I am not required to submit a Site Pro?le under Section
26.1..or any other section of the Waste» Management Act.

Lot size created

Number of units to be converted

Existing Zoning

Other Comments

Above checked by:

Development Cost Charge;

Single Family (per lot created) Sewer $2,377. x =

Water $2,435. x A//A
Two Family semi-detached (per lot created) Sewer

Water x =

‘Preliminary Subdivision or Strata Conversion approval is hereby granted based on the attached drawings. Should
any services be required to be moved to accommodate the subdivision, the relocation shall be at the sole expense of
the subdivider. Allnewly created lots, where Cityservices are available, are subject to Development Cost charges as
outlined in the City of Grand Forks Bylaw No. 1425 as listed above.

And any other requirements as

Dated this day of

Approving Of?cer for the City of Grand Forks
‘Strata Conversion approval willbe granted by the endorsement by ApprovingAuthority Fonn T.

‘Applicant is exempt from the duty to provide a site pro?le under Section 26.1 of the Waste Management Act with
respect to industrial or commercial purposes and industrial and commercial activities, which are not described in
Schedule 2 of the Site Pro?le package.

_

(N:fonnslplanning/preliminary approval of subdivision or strata conversions)

,- .,Ci Of?ce hiss!Dnl ., ‘K 7

Preliminary Subdivision/Strata Conversion Checklist
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14.-5 Historic Downtown Development Permit
Area

The Historic Downtown Development Permit Area is
designated under Section 919.1(1)(d) (revitalization of
a commercial area) and Section 919.1(1)(f) (form and
character of commercial development) of the Local
Government Act.

Area

The Historic Downtown, as de?ned in the City of
Grand Forks Heritage Program (BC Heritage Branch,
2011) are designated as a Historic Downtown
Development Permit Area on the Development Permit
Area Map (Schedule ‘C').

Much of the heritage resources that exist in Grand
Forks are located in the HistoricDowntown area. The
Council would also like to ensure that the heritage
resources in the City of Grand Forks are protected,
preserved and promoted.

Please refer to the City of Grand Forks Heritage
Program - Design Guidelines for the Historic
Downtown,prepared by the BCgovernments Heritage
Branch (2011) for more information.

14.-5.1 - Conditions for which a Commercial
Development Permit is not Required

The following may be undertaken without a
CommercialDevelopment Permit:

o internal alterations, which do not affect the
outer appearance of the building;

o replacement, upgrading or repair of roo?ng;
a painting the exterior of a building;

City of Grand Fork
sSustainable CommunityPlan

BylawNo. 1919, 2011
September 2011

- replacement of windows;
o constructionof a fence;
o construction of an accessory building or

additionto a commercial building that does
not alter patterns or requirements of parking,
access, loading or landscaping on the site;
and

a replacement of an existing sign or canopy,
where the size and design of the replacement
sign or canopy are generally consistent with
the sign or canopy being replaced.

14.5.2 - Guidelines

Development permits issued in this designation shall
he in accordancewith the following guidelines:

Buildingsand Structure

1 Heights of existing buildings should be
respected when additions are considered. In
particular, the physical appearance of the
height of buildings within the historic
downtown as seen from the street should be
maintained. Creative solutions to roof-top
additions should be sought in order to
maintain the visual appearance of buildings
ranging from one to three storeys in height.

2 New buildings within the historic downtown
should be constructed to respect the
character de?ning heights of surrounding
buildings.Care should be taken to ensure that
the height of a new building does not
overpower its neighbours.

.3 Each building speaks to its period of
construction. Interventions to existing
buildings should be undertaken in a way that

-54-.
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ensures that the character defining elements
of that building and the downtown are
conserved. Workto existing buildings must be
visually and physically compatible with the
character de?ning elements of the building.‘

New buildings in the downtown should reflect

current construction technology and design

aesthetics, while respecting the form, scale,
character and materials of surrounding

buildings. They should not imitate styles of
the past, but strive to achieve compatibility
with the old by re?ecting surrounding

characteristics of scale, rhythm, facade

articulation, window to wall ratios and by

maintaining the intact streetscape.

Building walls facing public streets and
walkways should provide visual interest to
pedestrians. Long blank walls should be
avoided.

Storefronts should be treated in a ways that
maintains their contribution to the continuity
of the streetscape. Non—character de?ning
materials and treatments should be removed.

Individual buildings should be treated as a
consistent whole. Buildingswith multiple store
fronts or primary and secondary facades
should avoid visual clutter associated with

con?icting or uncomplimentary treatments on
each storefront.

Recessed doorways should be retained or

revealed to add visual interest to the
streetscape.

10

11

City of Grand Fork
sSustainable CommunityPla
nBylawNo. 1919, 2011

September 201
1

Reinstating, or continuing to use character
de?ning corner entrances. New buildings at

intersections should be designed with corner
entrances.

In new construction, building materials and
colours should respect the histori

carchitecture and character of the Histori
cDowntown and the surrounding streetscape,

as seen in the colours, textures, and
modulationof existing materials.

Awnings should respect the character of the
era in which the building was constructed.
Awning and building colours should be
compatible. Awnings should be installed so
that they do not obscure details in the
masonry or distort the proportions of
architectural features. Back—litor metal

awnings are not appropriate.

Signage

12

.13

.14

15

-55-

Historic signs should be maintained if found to

be a character de?ning element of the place.

No sign should be constructed or situated so
that it dis?gures or conceals any signi?cant

architectural feature of the building.

Lighting should be permanent and should
respect the heritage values and character
de?ning elements of the building.

Lighting that highlights the architecture of the
building is encouraged, but that avoids light
pollution in the sky.
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“W SECTION 42 CC (Core Commercial) Zone

Permitted Uses

1. The following uses and no others are permitted in a CC zone:

(a) wholesale establishments;
(b) retail establishments;

By'a""1633 (c) restaurants and/or liquor licenced premises;
(d) professional of?ces and offices;
(e) medical and dental clinics;
(f) personal service establishments;
(g) clubs, lodges and similar fraternal organizations;
(h) indoor entertainment facilities;
(i) bus depots;
(j) taxi stands;
(k) financial institutions;
(I) hotels and motels;
(rn) post office;
(n) theatres;
(0) animal hospitals with no outside runs or enclosures

Permitted accessory uses and buildings on any parcel includes the following:

(p) dwelling units contained within the above permitted uses;
(q) any accessory building or structure for the above noted uses.

Regulations

2. On a parcel located in a CC zone:

Minimum Parcel Size for Subdivision purposes

(a) There is no minimum parcel size and the parcel must be connected
to a community sewage and water system.

Number and type of Dwelling Units allowed

(b) Private apartments contained within the above-mentioned
commercial activities are permitted. Not more than 30% of the
principal building shall be used for apartments.

Height

(c) No building or structure shall exceed 12 metres (40 ft) in height;
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SCHEDULE
Site Pro?le

awnar:
Last

, First . _

Company V/11,5014 L)“/’\9?’l»{'
Address”7962 Ki:/aside Dr ,_

?City Cmud S-Trvléb Provincdstate E
Postal 2014I f/0Country

Company

"' Company

P ease lttacll a élte lc?agoumsip

applicable) 7 KW”?10‘
‘

City Grand.Park;
’

6 cod. 1/OH/I/0

rm numygsmaassooiamd addltiqnal b
110 gg-.o3o E/4A 31¢‘/2, £3": ,c12103’ 53''? 411 J).

A. Name of Site

Middle Initial(s) _ (and/or, if applicable)

Owner’s Civic

Code/ZIP

B. Person Completing Site Pro?le (Leave blank if same as above):

Last Z /A/(: First HI.)If60'“ MiddleInitial(s) (and/or, if applicable)

C. Person to Contact Regarding the Site Pro?le:

Last g5' First [ I1‘ ddle Initial(s) (and/or, if applicable)

Mailing Address

Province/State

Postal Code/ZIP

Telephone ( .190 ) Lt‘-fl - $5" I 3 Fax ( ) -

IF Legally Titled, Registered Property

Site Street Address(if 3 30 <’ '7

(
Postal

legal descriptions.Attach an sheetzjfnecessaty.

I 4 "6"
V

Total number of titledparcels represented by this site pro?le is: Z
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SCHEDULE
Slte Pro?le

(V_e|sion 3.0)

IF Untitled Crown Land

\.z

I J311%‘?
Please indicatebelow, in
Schedule this site.

ce, equipment or engine
man ufncturing or whole
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?y Y 8
apprqpnate colg._\n1nopposite the question):

Petroleum,solvent or other pD)lui1"ng

Residue of piled
con,i;rol_systembaghousedust‘?
Discardedbarrels,dmmsortanks?

Contamination resulting from niigration from other properties?

is there currently your knowledgehas there previously
deposit of (please rnark appropriate column opposite the question):

Fill din, soil, gravel, sand orlike materials
acti??es listed under Schedule27

Discardedor granularmaterials blasting
foundrycgstingsands.mineore, rockur?oaf?

re eufrently or to the best of your knowledgelagsthereprewgixglbeenon thesite any
'2.deposit or dumping of the following niaterlals (please man:the appropriate column

to the question):

byproducts such as tank
processes or wasaewatertreatment?

products melting
fromcoal processing?

natural

Wash:products fromphotographicdevelopingor ?nishing laboratories;asphalttar mariufacuririg;
boilers, incinerators or otherthennalfacilities (e.g. ash); appliance, smallequipment or engine repair
salvage; cleaning operations (e.g. solvents); or automobileand truck parts cleaning orrepairi’

SCI,-IEl)ULE1
Site Pro?le

any
mark

left afterremoval materials such as chemicals,coal, ore, smelter slag,.air quality

of substances

or to of been on the site any

from a contaminated site or froma source used for any of the

waste grit, asphalt paving or roo?ng material,

loeatianseadjacent to foreshore

Materialssuch as householdgarbage, mixed municipal refuse, or demolitiondebris?

Waste or bottoms, residues, sludge, or ?occulation precipitates from industrial

Waste or mining activities, such as smelter slag, mine tailings, or cull materials

Wasteproducts from gas andoilwell drilling activities,suchas drilling?uids and muds?

or
(“'3'

>(>< >
<
>
<

th
e

Asgbstzincespillsetotheenvironmentgreater than 100 litres
?

the best

suchas sand
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elaionl?

AretherecurrentlyV

to the
V

ofyoiir knowleclge
(please markthe éppropriqte opposite the questi?n):

Underground me] or chemicalstorage tails?
.!,3- e}P9.:.'..=es9a-n,<!f3s!9.<~9l*;€.n,i.2e1

Arethereeiirrenflyhrtoltlrieof ;'oiirItnowledge
(please mark the afypropdatecolunmoppositethe que:5tion):

PCB~eonminingelectrical
withinbuildi?zs.or stored?

Waste asbestosor
panellingburied?

he I: of kn edge ‘are therecurrently
‘

‘(please the apprqp agecolumnoppasibeti_IE[gl;l§?‘1'0lfl): _ ,_:
Gpvunrnmt

‘

othernoti?cations perm g
L water, groundwaterothferenvironmentalmedia?

recover restrictivecovenants [and use.or other charges orfrom contgminants rernaining unsite ?ornother environmentalconditions?

Governmentnoti?cationsrelating

r SneilityIocaoedcmthe site?

i : Please listany or present government ordP359
‘

mental condition,useor ijunlityofsoil,-“surface

completed by a‘oa\nsultant,receiver or trustee, please
site pro?le. Mtaehextra pages, if necessary):

/Cdumaaat K/e972

SCHEDULE 1
Site "Pro?le

or best have there beenpreviouslyonthe siteany
‘column

A.

have there been previously on the site any

A. transformers or capacitors either at grade, attached above ground to poles,
located

B. asbestoscontaining materialssuch as pipe wrapping, blown-ininsulation or X
C. Paints, solvents,mineralspiritsor waste pest control products or pest control product containers

stored in volumes greater than205 litres? )(

To your any ofthe following to the site

A. to environmentaleconditionsor qualityof soil,

B. Liens to costs, on encumbrances,stemming
or wastes or

C. to past or recurring environmentalviolationsat the site or any X

(Note 1 ers, permits, approvals, certi?catesandnoti?cations pertaining to the
environ water, groundwater or biotaat the site.

Note 2: If indicate the type and degree of access to infonnation used to
complete this

7* X;

Vpertaii
iing

”ci>rder,‘s_
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Permit Demolition

Gov t contact : Date Date

Name

Agency

Address

Director of Waste Manngemnt

Decommissioning_
r . r 4_=_r __;,

Agsessed by:

Region

# J

SCHEDULE 1
Site Pro?le

The person completing the site profile states that the above information is true, based on the person's current knowledge as
of the date

520/ ~./O:

Reason For Submission(Please check one or more ofthefollowing) Soil Rem0Va| D

Subdivision Application Cl Zoning Application D Development Permit El Variance El Permit D
Date received: Submitted to ‘forwardedto

Site Registrar: Director of Waste
Management:

Telephone Fax

Reason For Submission (Please check one or more ofthefollowing)

Under Order CI Site CI Foreclosure El

Date received: Investigation Decision date:
' d?

Name
Require

YES NO

Telephone Fax

If site pro?le entered, SITE ID

Date received: Entered onto Site Regis? by: SITE ID #: Entry date:
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ENGINEERING (2012) LTD. Tel (250) 365-3696
2248 Columbia Avenue Castlegar, BC VIN 2X1 e-mail: mail@wsaeng.ca Fax (250) 365-3607

June 18,2013 C12001-046

Kathy LaBossiere
Box 220 — 130 Industrial Drive
Grand Forks, BC
VOH 1H0

RE: GRANBYBUILDING STRUCTURAL CERTIFICATION

WSA Engineering (2012) Ltd has completed a review of the combinedresidential commercialbuilding located

at 7326 Riverside Drive, Grand Forks BC. This letter is to confirm that the building is of a reasonable quality

for its age. It has undergone a recent renovation including modi?cations to structural support to allow for a

modi?ed ?oor plan on the second level. Engineered drawings, inspections and certi?cations were completed

by WSA Engineering (2012) Ltd for the structural modi?cations in accordance with the requirements of the

local building of?cial.

While the ownership structure is changing, the use and occupancy of the building remains the same. The

upper ?oor will continue to be used for residential suites and the bottom ?oor for commercial/retail. As such

the Authority Having Jurisdiction has not required a code review and update of elements relating to the use and

occupancy since the building has functioned in its current state for many years.

The building plans for the modi?cations to the upper ?oor layout have been reviewed and approved by the

local building of?cial.

Sincerely,
WSA ENGINEERIN G (2012) LTD.

Dan Sahlstrom P.Eng
Senior Civil Engineer

3
“
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Ifa person applyingto deposit a strata plan wishes to i
strata plan a previously occupied building. the person
the proposed strata plan to the approving authonty.

The approving authority must not approve the strata
buildingsubdmtially complies with the following:

PAQT14 — Land 11
Approval for conversion of previously occupied buildings

242(1) For the purposes of this section, 'q)provlng authority" means

(a) the municipal council of the municipalityif the land is located
in a municipality,

(b) the regional board of the regional district if the land is located
in a regional district but not in a municipality and is not
Nisga’a Lands,

(c) the Nisga’a Village Government if the land is located within
Nisga’a Village Lands, or

(d) the Nisga’a Lisims Governmentif the land is Nisga’a Lands
other than Nisga’a Wllage Lands.

(2) nclude in the
must submit

(3) The approving authority may

(a) approve the strata plan, or approve the strata plan subject to
terms and conditions,or

(b) refuse to approve the plan, or to approve the
strata plan until terms and conditions imposed by the
approving authority are met.

(4) The decisionoftheapproving under subseaion (3) is ?nal
and may not beappealed. »

(5) plan unless the

(a) the applicable bylaws of the municipalityor regional district;

(b) applicable Nisga’a laws;
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REQUESTFORDECISION
— REGULARMEETING—

vMN|

To: Mayor and Council

From: Sasha Bird, Manager of Development & Engineering Services

Date: October 13, 2015

Subject: Application for a Development Variance Permit to request an increase
in the ratio of apartments to the principal building from 30% to 50% to
allow for the current 4 apartments upstairs to remain and to comply
with the Zoning Bylaw.

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT Council considers the Development Variance
Permit application and selects one of the presented options.

BACKGROUND: The City has received a Development Variance Permit application from
Valley Heights Developments Inc., owner of property legally described as Lot A, District Lot
108 & 3398, SDYD, Plan EPP49626, located at 7330 Riverside Drive. The property in
question is currently zoned CC (Commercial Core) in the City’s Zoning Bylaw and the zone
allows for private apartments to be contained within a commercial permitted use but that not
more than 30% of the principal building shall be used for apartments. The applicant wishes
to apply to vary Section 42(2)(b) Commercial Core Zone Regulations — Number and Type of
Dwelling Units Allowed, to increase the ratio of apartments to the principal building from 30%
to 50% to allow the current 4 apartments upstairs to remain and to comply with the Zoning
Bylaw.

The building is considered “existing non-conforming” in that the apartments upstairs are 50%
of the building and the current zoning bylaw for the Commercial Core states that not more
than 30% of the principal building shall be used for apartments. If the building was to burn
more than 75% of the footprint, at least 1 or 2 of the apartments would be jeopardized for
rebuild, unless the applicants applied for a variance to allow the apartments in the building to
be 50% of the building space. This is a ratio change and not a density issue.

Section 901 of the Local Government Act states that a person may apply to the Board of
Variance to permit a minor variance or allow an exemption to relieve hardship. At the
present time, the City does not have a Board of Variance, so the approving body is Council.

Section 901(4) of the Local Government Act states that notice must be given to all owners or
tenants, indicating the land that is the subject of the application and the land that is adjacent
to the subject of the application. Staff would send letters to the affected property owners
and/or tenants, informing them of the variance application and inviting them to attend the
November 9”‘,2015 Committee of the Whole meeting, if they have any comments or
concerns regarding the proposed variance.

Page 69 of 290



Page 70 of 290



/-‘

aw,-,,d,d

REQUESTFORDECISION
— REGULARMEETING-

t.\\AN!

-Excerpt from the City’s Zoning Bylaw — CC — Commercial Core;

-Aerial and Street views of the property and a copy of the zoning map
showing the zoning of area;

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT Council considers the Development Variance
Permit application and selects one of the presented options.

OPTIONS: 1. COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE TO SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION.

2. COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE TO NOT SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION
.

3. COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE TO REFER THE REPORT BACK TO STAFF
FOR MORE INFORMATION.

Departm r C7-KO Chief Adn?nistrgivé Officer
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IHEFT_Q_OREiORAI|ON_LOFIHLEFQTYOF F
7217— 4THSTREET,BOX220 - GRANDFORKS,BCVOH1H0- FAX250-442-8000- TELEPHONE250-442-8266

DEVELOPMENTVARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENTACT, SECTION 922

Registered Owner(s) Vallev Heiahts lnc.

William L. Lina. Owner

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 717

Grand F .B.C. VOH 1H0

Telephone: Home: Work: 250-442-8812

Legal Description & P.l.D.: Lot A. District Lot 108 & 339$. S.D.Y.D.. Plan E

Street Address 7330 Riverside D

DECLARATIONPURSUANT TO THE WASTE MANAGEMENTACT

I, William L. Ling, owner of the subject property described on this application form, hereby declare
that the land which is the subject of this application has not, to my knowledge been used for industrial
or commercial activity as defined in the list of "lndustrial Purposes and Activities" (Schedule 2) of the
Contaminated Sites Regulation (B.C. Reg. 375/96). I therefore declare that I am not required to
submit a Site Profile under Section 26.1 or any other section of the Waste Ma

September 10. 2 15
(s (date)

Act.
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I-.'-It-.‘-In I-:‘....,.__,5_"‘\ur.:TqSECTION 42 CC (Core Commercial) Zone

Permitted Uses

1. The following uses and no others are permitted in a CC zone:

(a) wholesale establishments;
(b) retail establishments;
(c) restaurants and/or liquor licenced premises; By'aw1633

(d) professional offices and offices;
(e) medical and dental clinics;
(f) personal service establishments;
(g) clubs, lodges and similar fraternal organizations;
(h) indoor entertainment facilities;
(i) bus depots;
(j) taxi stands;
(k) financial institutions;
(I) hotels and motels;
(m) post office;
(n) theatres;
(0) animal hospitals with no outside runs or enclosures

Permitted accessory uses and buildings on any parcel include the following

(p) dwelling units contained within the above permitted uses;
(q) any accessory building or structure for the above noted uses

Regulations

2. On a parcel located in a CC zone:

Minimum Parcel Size for Subdivision purposes

(a) There is no minimum parcel size and the parcel must be connected
to a community sewage and water system.

Number and tvpe of Dwelling Units allowed

(b) Private apartments contained within the above-mentioned
commercial activities are permitted. Not more than 30% of the
principal building shall be used for apartments.

Height

(c) No building or structure shall exceed 12 metres (40 ft) in height;
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SUBJECTPROPERTY

Showing 2 apartments (3 windows each) and the
other 2 apartments are at the back of the building

Commercial

STREETVIEW OF BUILDINGBEFORE
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING—

A QMILF

To: Mayor and Council

From: Manager of Development and Engineering

Date: October 13, 2015

Subject: Approval from Council to permit Granby River Mining
Company Inc. to enter into a Mortgage of Lease
Agreement with Community Futures Development
Corporation in order to secure financial funding for plant
upgrades at its operations in Grand Forks and approval for
the City to enter into a Non-Disturbance Agreement with
Community Futures.

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL permit Granby River Mining
Company Inc. to enter into a Mortgage of Lease
Agreement with Community Futures Development
Corporation in order to secure financial funding for plant
upgrades at its operations in Grand Forks and further
RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL approve the City entering
into a Non-Disturbance Agreement with Community
Futures.

BACKGROUND: A Lease agreement has been in place with the City of Grand Forks for the
slag piles for some 50 +/- years. Further, January 1, 2002, The City entered into a Lease
Extension, Consolidation and Eighth Modification Agreement with Pacific Abrasives Supply,
Inc. and as assigned by way of an Assignment of Lease dated January 1, 2004 among the
City of Grand Forks ( the “City”),Pacific Abrasives and Supply, Inc. (“Pacific Abrasives”) and
Granby River Mining Company, Inc, including all amendments and modifications thereto, all
extensions, renewals, replacements and restatements thereof and all substitutions therefor,
from time to time (the “Lease”) for the use, production and sales of the slag minerals.

As per Pacific Abrasives letter dated September 22, 2015, in order for Pacific Abrasives to
continue to carry out business by providing a quality product on a timely basis, a major
upgrade to plant operations is required. In order to carry out these upgrades, Pacific Abrasives
willneed to borrow a substantial amount of funds and enter into a Mortgage of Lease with the
City and Community Futures.
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REGULARMEETING

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:

General: Provides assurance that Granby River Mining Company Inc. can
continue to operate, provide a more superior product in a timely and
safe manner and provide employment to local residents, vendors and
suppliers.

Strategic Impact: The City of Grand Forks can continue to collect royalties for the slag
materials.

Financial: N/A

Policy/Legislation Section (8) 1 of the Community Charter gives the municipality the
capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person, including the
power to acquire and dispose of property. Disposal of property also
includes the leasing of property.

Attachments: - Letter from Pacific Abrasives and Supply, Inc. with the background and
details of the requirements for the plant upgrades at its operations i

nGrand Forks.

- Letter from Granby River Mining Company, Inc. confirming that i
thas complied with all of its obligations under the current Lease with

the City of Grand Forks.

- Copy of the Mortgage of Lease Agreement.

- Aerial Photo of the Location of Operations.

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL permit Granby River Mining
Company Inc. to enter into a Mortgage of Lease
Agreement with Community Futures Development
Corporation in order to secure financial funding for plant
upgrades at its operations in Grand Forks and further
RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL approve the City entering
into a Non-Disturbance Agreement with Community
Futures.

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL SUPPORT THE
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REQUESTEURIJEBISIUN
— REGULARMEETING-

RRRN

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL DOES NOT SUPPORT THE
RECOMMENDATION

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO
STAFF FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

Departmen or CAO ief Administrative ’Officer'
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(h) institute and prosecute all suits, proceedings and actions that the Receive
rconsiders necessary or advisable for the proper protection of the Mortgagor’s

Interest, to defend all suits, proceedings and actionsagainst the Mortgagor, th
eReceiver or if applicable, the Mortgagee, to appear in and conduct the

prosecution and defence of any suit, proceeding or action then pending or
thereafter instituted,and appeal any suit, proceedingor action.

9.7 No Obligation to Marshal

In exercisinghis or her powers hereunder,any Receiver will be free to deal with the Mortgagor’s
Interest and any assets of the Mortgagor relatedthereto in such order or manner as he or she may
be directed by the Mortgagee, any rule of law or equity to the contrary notwithstanding,and the
Receiverwill be under no obligationto marshal in favour of the Mortgagor.

9.8 Application of Revenue

The net revenue received from the Mortgagor’s Interest and the net proceeds of sale of the
Mortgagor’s Interest or any part thereof will be applied by the Receiver, subject to the claims of
creditors, if any, ranking in priority to this Mortgage, as follows:

(a) ?rst, in payment of all costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the
appointment of the Receiverand the exercise by him or her of all or any of the
powers aforesaid including the reasonable remuneration of the Receiver and all
amounts properly payable to the Receiver;

(b) second, in payment to the Mortgagee of all costs, charges and expenses due and
owing to the Mortgageehereunderother than the Obligations;

(c) third, in payment to the Mortgagee of the outstandingObligations; and

(e) last, any surpluswill be paid to the Mortgagor,

provided that in the event any party claims a charge against all or a portion of the surplus, the
Receiver will make such disposition of all or any portion of the surplus as the Receiver deems
appropriate in the circumstances.

9.9 Not a Mortgagee in Possession

Neither the provisions of this Mortgage nor the exercise of the powers provided in this Mortgage
will render the Mortgagee a mortgagee in possession, and the Mortgagee will not be accountabl

eexcept for the monies actually receivedby the Mortgagee.

9.10 Remedies Cumulative

All remedies available to the Mortgagee herein will be in addition to and not restrictiveof the
remediesof the Mortgagee at law and in equity and by statute.
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING-

E v.\\|\N!

To: Mayor and Council

From: Manager of Operations

Date: October 13, 2015

Subject: Electric Vehicle and Charging Update

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL approves amending the 2015
Financial Plan from the equipment replacement fund to
include the additional costs of up to $15,000 for the purchase
of an electric vehicle.

BACKGROUND:

Due to some last minute program changes by the project sponsor Tesla Motors, Sun Country
Highways was only able to secure 1 free 100Amp Universal charger for Grand Forks versus the
original plan of 2x Tesla 100amp chargers and 1x 60amp universal chargers. The charger will
be donated from a family from Manitoba to the City.

Through a Request for Quotation it became apparent that the $30,000 set aside for a SUV
vehicle replacement for 2015 is not enough for an electric vehicle. The prices start around
$38,000 and range to $45000 for the entry models of Electric Vehicles with Range extenders
capable to travel over 250 kilometers. The lowest end model without range extender capable of
110km on a single charge is minimum $28,000 for a Smart for 2. Other 5 passenger models
without range extender start at $32,500. (All prices are without applicable taxes, fees, and
levies)

There are currently provincial incentives in the range of $2500 - $5000 available to help with the
purchase of an electric vehicle.

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:

General: Amending the Financial plan would allow the City to purchase an electric
vehicle.

Strategic Impact: Reduction in CO2 emissions
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REQUESTFORDECISION
— REGULARMEETING—

t.\\|

Financial: The original budget foresaw a gasoline SUV as a replacement in the Cit
yof Grand Forks 2015 budget. Amending the financial plan would allow to

proceed with an Electric Vehicle purchase instead.

PolicyILegislation: Council has the authority to amend the financial plan

Attachments: n/a

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL approves amending the 2015
Financial Plan from the equipment replacement fund to
include the additional costs of up to $15,000 for the purchase
of an electric vehicle.

OPTIONS: 1. COTW COULD CHOOSE TO SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION.
2. COTW COULD CHOOSE TO NOT SUPPORT THE RECOMMENDATION.

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO STAFF
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.
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City of Grand Forks: Transition Housing ProiectSteering Committee QTHPSC)

$7

Meeting held on Wednesday August 5, 2015 from 1:30 pm to 3:47 pm
Council Chambers at City Hall, Grand Forks, B.C.

PRESENT:

Neil Krog Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Christine Thompson Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Colleen Ross Councillor.City of Grand Forks

Bob Huff Habitat for Humanity
Gene Robert Boundary Emergency Transitional Housing Society
Jake Raven Independent
James Wilson Boundary Family & Individual Services Society

Sasha Bird Manager of Development & Engineering
Dolores Sheets Engineering Technologist
Dave Smith Planning Consultant, Meeting Facilitator

ABSENT:
Connie Marchal Boundary Women’s Coalition
Wendy McCu||och Community Futures Boundary
Sher Poste Sunshine Valley Community Services Society

(Zena Dorner)
Jim Harrison RCMP
Roly Russell RDKBArea D Director
Judith Lloyd Boundary Emergency Transitional Housing Society

MINUTES:

1. Adopt minutes of the June 23, 2015 meeting.

MOTION: WILSON/RAVEN

CARRIED.

Needs Study Review (Preliminary Needs Assessment Report):

a) Discussion of the Preliminary Needs Assessment Report “Housing Needs for the Homeless:

Grand Forks”:

Gene Robert suggested obtaining and reviewing the BC Non-Profit Housing Association Rental Housing

Index report & the Community First Agreement (2008) that the City signed onto.

Bob Huff commented that the Boundary region is geographically isolated and doesn’t have access to the

same resources as neighbouring catchment areas (i.e. we have a smaller “pie” from which to draw

resources). We need to highlight that we are basically on our own in Grand Forks.

Colleen Ross commented that homeless people seem to funnel here from the surrounding areas.

2015-08-05 THPSCMeeting Minutes_Adopted.docx September 16, 2015 Page 1 of 2

nkrog@grandforks.ca
cthomQson@grandforks.ca
cross randforks.ca

bob.huff@hfhsebc.org
crobert@te|us.net
i&traven@te|us.net
iames.wi|son@bfiss.com

sbird@grandforks.ca
dsheets randforks.ca
dsmith51 shaw.ca

connie bwcshelter te|us.net

wendy@boundarycf.com

'im.harrison rcm - rc. c.ca
rrusse||@rdkb.com
iuiu|o@shaw.ca
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,inCitv of Grand Forks: Transition Hous _a Proiect Steering Committee iTHPSCl

Meeting held on Tuesday September 15, 2015 from 12:00 pm to 2:56 pm
Council Chambers at City Hall, Grand Forks, B.C.

PRESENT:

Neil Krog
Christine Thompson
Frank Konrad

Bob Huff
Gene Robert
Jake Raven
Connie Marchal
Sandy Elzinga

Sasha Bird
Dolores Sheets
Dave Smith

ABSENT:
Colleen Ross
Roly Russell
Wendy McCul|och

Sher Poste
(Zena Dorner)

Jim Harrison
Judith Lloyd
James Wilson

MINUTES:

Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Mayor, City of Grand Forks

Habitat for Humanity
Boundary Emergency Transitional Housing Society
Independent
Boundary Women’s Coalition
Community Futures Boundary

Manager of Development & Engineering
Engineering Technologist
Planning Consultant, Meeting Facilitator

Councillor, City of Grand Forks
RDKBArea D Director
Community Futures Boundary
Sunshine Valley Community Services Society

RCMP
Boundary Emergency Transitional Housing Society
Boundary Family & Individual Services Society

1. Adopt minutes of the August 5, 2015 meeting:

MOTION: HUFF/RAVEN

2. Recap - Discussion of the outcome of the last meeting:

No discussion regarding last meeting.

2015-09-15 THPSC Meeting Minutes_Adopted.docx September 16, 2015 Page 1 of 3

CARRIED
.

nkrog@grandforks.ca
cthomgson@grandforks.ca
fkonrad@grandforks.ca

bob.huff@hfhsebc.org
crobert@te|us.net
i&traven@te|us.net
connie bwcshelter telus.net
sandy@boundarycf.com

sbird@grandforks.ca
dsheets randforks.ca
dsmith51 shaw.ca

cross randforks.ca
rrusse||@rdkb.com
wendy@boundarycf.com

'im.harrison rcm - rc. c.ca
iuiu|o@shaw.ca
iames.wi|son@bfiss.com

Page 124 of 290



mugmm

3. Review of Assessment Report revisions:

Bob Huff commented that the MAAP’s group had secured $100,000 in funding through the UBCM Gas

Tax fund and suggested that the committee check to see ifthis funding could still be available.

Gene Robert commented that there is a person in town who has been working with vulnerable minors

(19 years old and under) and is presently tracking 13 persons. Gene is going to see if he can get data

for this demographic.

Connie Marchal is going to provide Dave Smith with some 2015 statistics of homelessness.

Gene Robert BETH’s is moving forward with a plan to start assigning tasks for persons using the facilit
y

for long-stays in order to encourage a sense of ownership and begin preparing those persons for a

move into transition housing in the future. This would be a stepped/staged process and not be targeted

at all patrons at once.

Bob Huff commented that the vision should be a multi-agency effort aimed at transitioning homeless

persons back into productive roles in society.

Connie Marchal clarified that the role of their project is to provide “second stage” housing for women

and children, to fillthe gap from when they leave the shelter (30 days maximum stays). She also

commented that their facility is consistently at or over capacity.

Gene Robert commented that BETH’s is poised and ready to begin the phase of transitioning homeless

people.

Connie Marchal clarified the purpose of their facility is for vulnerable women and children and they

cannot normally take in “high risk” females (i.e. their intakes have to be clean/sober) therefore, the

committee should not be focusing on just men as there is a need for transition housing for women as

well.

Bob Huff clarified that the focus should not be just on men but rather on the homeless sector as a

whole.

The committee continued to discuss and revise the Preliminary Needs Assessment Report. Revised

document to be circulated for review.

4. Dave Smith — Report on feedback from BC Housing and CMHC:

Dave has been in contact with these agencies and they have asked to be kept apprised of the meetings

and progress of the committee.

2015-09-15 THPSC Meeting Minutes_Adopted.docx September 16, 2015 Page 2 of 3
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Citv of Grand Forks: Transition Housi Proiect Steering Committee (THPSC)

Meeting held on Tuesday September 16, 2015 from9:00 am to 12:05 pm
Council Chambers at City Hall, Grand Forks, B.C.

PRESENT:

Neil Krog Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Christine Thompson Councillor, City of Grand Forks
Frank Konrad Mayor, City of Grand Forks

Bob Huff Habitat for Humanity
Gene Robert Boundary Emergency Transitional
Jake Raven Independent
Connie Marchal Boundary Women’s Coalition
Sandy Elzinga Community Futures Boundary

Sasha Bird Manager of Development & E
Dolores Sheets Engineering Tech
Dave Smith Planning Consulta Facilitator

ABSENT:
Wendy McCul|och Community Futures Boun
Sher Poste Sunsh Commun

(Zena Dorner)
Jim Harrison
Judith Lloyd E ing
James Wilson mily & ividual Society
Colleen Ross Councill
Roly Russell

MINUTES:

1. Adopt Septem 201 ng

MOTION: HUF PSON

CARRIE
D

2. Review of Site Options — rPoint on possible sites presented as a basis for discussion:

Sites were reviewed and evaluated (i.e. pros vs. cons). To be summarized and distributed to

committee members.

2015-09-16 THPSC Meeting Minutes_Draft.docx September 17, 2015 Page 1 of 2

nkrog@grandforks.ca
cthom9son@grandforks.ca
fkonrad@grandforks.ca

bob.huff@hfhsebc.org

wendy@boundarycf.com

iim.harrison@rcmg-grc.gc.ca
iuiulo@shaw.ca
iames.wi|son@bfiss.com
cross randforks.ca
rrusse|l@rdkb.com
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Committee members to review summarized prolcon evaluations and be prepared to

meeting.

Next Steps:

Sasha to send revised oopy of needs assessment out to committee members. Com

next meeting‘

Next meeting scheduled on October 20, 2015 at 1:00 pm to 3:00 pm.

. Adjournment:

Dave Smith adjourned the meeting at 12:05 pm.

ng is the writer’s interpretation the proceedings.

comments by email, by 12: on F

ist

narrow list at next

4.

mittee to review at

5

The foregoi of If there are any errors or omissions, please

forward , in writing 00 pm riday, August 28”‘,2015, to the attention of the

writer:

Dolores Sheets
Engineering Technolog
City of Grand Forks
Ph: 250-442-8266

2015-09-16 THPSC Meeting Minutes_Draft.docx September 17, 2015 Page 2 of 2

. Consideration of Action:

a) Recommendation of a preferred site ( ) = matters involving

property acquisition need to be handled confidentially.

b) Referral to staff of investigation of one or more sites — further due diligence to pursue site

options will be necessary before bringing this fonlvard to Council in public =

not recommended at this stage

this is

dsheets randforks.ca
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Printed by: Info City of Grand Forks September-28-15 3:08:23 PM
Title: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton : SD51 Page 1 of 3

From: -Zoe Kirk <zkirk@rdos.bc.ca> September-28-15 12:08:10

Subject: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton

To: _"Frank Ritcey (bc@wi|dsafebc.com)" <bc@wi|dsafebc.com> CE;
Cc; Elef Christensen <echristensen@rdos.bc.ca>

W

redroses <redroses@persona.ca> SEP28 2015
' . I‘ . .i3arbLeslie<|barbles ie@govbccal> THE CORPORATION OF

Brian Harris <bstan|eyharrIs@gmaI|.com> THE QTY OF GRAND FORKS
Chris KEIR<chris.keir@gov.bc.ca>
"Christine SILVER"<christine.si|ver@icbc.com>
Dixon TERBASKET <dterbasket@syilx.org>
"Do||y Kruger (dkruger@pib.ca)" <dkruger@pib.ca>
"Douglas Pateman (doug|as.pateman@gmai|.com)" <douglas....
Frank Armitage <farmitage@princeton.ca>
Info City of Grand Forks

Jim Beck Sgt <Jim.Beck@gov.bc.ca>
Judy Sentes <judysentes@penticton.ca>
"John.Fenske@penticton.ca" <John.Fenske@penticton.ca>
"Niel Dendy (nie|dendy@icloud.com)" <nieldendy@icloud.com>
Sandra Old?eld <sandra@tinhorn.com>
Tom Siddon <tsiddon@rdos.bc.ca>
"PlBAnimal Management (anima|.managem ent@pi b.ca)“ <ani. ..
"Tina Siebert(11na.Siebert@penticton.ca)" <Tina.Siebert@pe...
"Igrant2@teIus.net" <|grant2@telus.net>
Bob Coyne <bcoyne@rdos.bc.ca>
"garry.moritz@rcmp-grc.gc.ca“ <garry.moritz@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>
Andrew JAKUBEIT<Andrewjakubeit@gmail.com>
"blake.laven@penticton.ca" <b|ake.|aven@penticton.ca>
"craig.a.mc|ean@gov.bc.ca" <craig.a.mclean@govbc.ca>
Bill Newell <bnewell@rdos.bc.ca>
"environment@lsib.net“ <environment@|sib.net>
"Craig McLean (craig.a.mclean@gov.bc.ca)" <craig.a.mc|ean
Nelson Tallio <GAA@|sib.net>

HelloAll:
—)

Some new names have been added to the list of recipients. For those names, a bit of history.-* As a
group, we have met four times in the past two years to discuss the urban deer issue and other
issues related to deer-> (overabundance to lack of deer). This year the Union of BC Municipalities
received a delegation and proposed money ($100,000) and time to look at the issue.
So, partly due to this announcement, the fourth South Okanagan Deer Committee meeting date is
|'1OW set.
—>

Three reasons for this:
1.+~+~» To update one another on any progress made on the issue; City Bylaw amendments, First
Nations update,

2.»~—-~ To create an action list for us to work on in 2016
5,.»
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Printed by: Info City of Grand Forks September-28-15 3:08:23 PM
Title: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton : SD51 Page 2 of 3

3.+~»~» ** To have an active regional committee, ready and waiting to apply for funds from the
UBCM directive and provincial $100,000 -*when they tell us 'how’ **

Where: Ministry of Environment—-’ 102 industrial Place, Penticton "(Thanks to Inspector
Leslie)

When:-’ Octe 215“-’-* 1:30 -* 3:30 pm*

Ifyou feel I have missed anyone on the list of recipients, please advise me.

If you have agenda topics -* please send them along to me

—)

I will bring refreshments.-> Due to the variety of different personal devices I have not used the
’meeting’ option in Of?ce -* so please RSVP to me ©
Frank Ritcey from Provincial Wi|dSafeBC Program from Kamloops will ~>bein attendance
—>

Agenda to be distributed by Oct 16”‘
—>

Thank you all!
Regards,

Zoe

Zoe Kirk-5 RDOSPublicWorks Projects & WildSafeBCCommunity Coordinator
Regional District of Okanagan—Simi|kameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BCV2A 5J9
p. 250.490.4110 r*tf. 1.877.610.3737-“*f.250.492.0063
www.rdos.bc.ca o->zkirk@rdos.bc.ca
This Communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, and may contain confidential,
personal and/ or privileged information.Please contact the sender immediately ifyou are not the intended recipient of
this communication and do not copy, distribute or take action relying on it. Any communication received in error, or
subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed.

Province to fund urban deer cost-share program
Responding today to a series of recommendations made by the Union of BCMunicipalities (UBCM),the Province has committed to striking
a Provincial Urban Deer Advisory Committee as well as the provision of up to $100,000 for future urban deer management operations.

The recommendations from the UBCM flowed from an initial meeting with the Province at an Urban Deer Workshop in January 2015. That
workshop laid the groundwork for an increased awareness and understanding of policy, legislation, regulation and best practices in urban
deer management and the responses to the UBCM recommendations provide a clear road map toward greater co-operation between the
two levels of government.

Participants at the workshop also agreed to create an advisory committee with both provincial and municipal representation to work
together on urban deer management. The committee is currently being formed and more details willfollow.

The workshop led to 22 recommendations presented by the UBCM to the Province, and today the Province has responded to each of them
Two of the recommendations call for the Province to provide funding to address urban deer management issues and tools. In support of
this, up to $100,000 a year will be set aside for approved urban deer management and research projects.

Details on how the funding will be made available will be worked out in consultation with the Urban Deer Advisory Committee, once it is
formed. Any project would require review and permitting by the Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations, in accordance

0KANA.GAH'
III-I|l.KN'EEl\l

—L.,.«...—»a—>..
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Printed by: Info City of Grand Forks September-28-15 3:08:23 PM
Title: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton : SD51 Page 3 of 3

with the WildlifeAct.

The Province is committed to partnering with local governments to facilitate the development of socially acceptable urban deer
management solutions. Ministry staff already assist communities in managing urban wildlifeconflicts in a number of ways, including:

0 Participation on community-based committees
0 Provision of technical advice
0 Development of hunting regulations and issue permits to manage deer populations within or near urban areas

Loaning of available equipment to communities as required.

The Province will continue to work with communities to help them manage urban deer conflicts. The formation of an advisory committee
will help inform these efforts and ensure communities have the support they need to make informed decisions on urban deer.

Quote:

Steve Thomson, Minister of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations ->

"The creation of an urban deer advisory committee will help ensure greater collaboration between municipalities and the Government of
B.C.and provide the resources necessary for communities to make informed choices about how to resolve urban deer issues.”

Learn More:

For a copy of the urban deer fact sheet visit:

For a copy of the UBCM recommendations and the Province’s response to each visit:
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Printed by: Info City of Grand Forks
Title: Re: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton : SD51

From: I Rosemary Doughty <redroses@persona.ca> 28/09/2015

Subject: Re: Deer Committee Meeting Oct 21st - Penticton

To: -ZoeKirk <zkirk@rdos.bc.ca>

Cc: "Frank Ritcey (bc@wildsafebc.com)" <bc@wildsafebc.com>
Elef Christensen <echristensen@rdos.bc.ca>
Barb Leslie <barb.|es|ie@gov.bc.ca>
Brian Harris <bstanleyharris@gmail.com>
Chris KEIR<chris.keir@gov.bc.ca>
Christine SILVER<christine.silver@icbc.com>
Dixon TERBASKET <dterbasket@syi|x.org>
"Do||y Kruger (dkruger@pib.ca)" <dkruger@pib.ca>
"Douglas Pateman (douglas.pateman@gmai|.com)" <doug|as....
Frank Arrnitage <fa'mitage@princeton.ca>
Info City of Grand Forks

Jim Beck Sgt <Jim.Beck@gov.bc.ca>
Judy Sentes <judy.sentes@penticton.ca>
"John.Fenske@penticton.ca“ <John.Fenske@penticton.ca>
“Niel Dendy (nieldendy@icloud.com)" <nieldendy@icloud.com>
Sandra Old?eld <sandra@tinhorn.com>
Tom Siddon <tsiddon@rdos.bc.ca>
"P|B Animal Management (anima|.managem ent@pi b.ca)" <ani. ..
"Tina Siebert('l1na.Siebert@penticton.ca)" <Tina.Siebert@pe...
"lgrant2@telus.net" <|grant2@te|us.net>
Bob Coyne <bcoyne@rdos.bc.ca>
"garry.moritz@rcmp-grc.gc.ca" <garry. moritz@rcmp-grc.gc.ca>
Andrew JAKUBEIT<Andrewjakubeit@gmai|.com>
"blake.laven@penticton.ca" <blake.laven@penticton.ca>
"craig.a.mclean@gov.bc.ca" <craig.a.mclean@gov.bc.ca>
Bill Newell <bnewell@rdos.bc.ca>
“environment@|sib.net" <environment@|sib.net>
Nelson Tallio <GAA@|sib.net>

Thank you Zoe, I am con?rming my attendance. Councillor Rosemary Doughty

Sent from my iPad

On Sep 28, 2015, at 12:08 PM, Zoe Kirk <zkirk rdos.bc.ca> wrote:

Hello All

Some new names have been added to the list of recipients. For those names, a bit of
history. As a group, we have met four times in the past two years to discuss the urban deer

September—28—153:08:13 PM
Page 1 of 3
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THE CORPORATIO
THE CITYOF GRAND RKS

SUNSHINE VALLEY WOMEN’S INSTITUTE
c/0 Box 2103,

Grand Forks, B.C. VOH 1H0 R
SEP29 2015

September 20, 2015
N OF
FO

TO: Grand Forks City Council
Mayor Frank Konrad
Councillor Julia Butler
Councillor Chris Hammett
CouncillorNeil Krog
Councillor Colleen Ross
Councillor ChristineThompson
Councillor Michael Wirischagen

FROM: Sunshine Valley Women’s Institute

In 2013 we wrote to City Council, on behalf of the residents of the Silver Kettle Village,
to request that the City of Grand Forks build a sidewalk along the road in front of Silver
Kettle Village. We met at a City Council meeting in June 2014 to discuss our request.
Letters were sent Jan. 2013, Oct. 2013, a Signed Petition was submitted,and W0men’s
Institute membersattended the June 2014 council to present our request.

In the fall of 2014, it was verbally agreed by City Council to put this project into the next
year’s budget.

We are, at this time, reminding Grand Forks City Council to ensure that this request gets
includedin the upcoming budget for completionby the end of 2015. As of this date we
have not heard from your office, nor have we witnessedany activity that indicatesthat
the work is in progress.

We are now running into the fall whereas winter conditions will be upon us soon; thus
making travel conditionsfor our residents at risk for another season.

Our thanks, in advance, for your attention to this request.

President
Sunshine alley Women’s Institute
Phone: 250-442-8040

Would it be advisablefor our group to attenda City Council meeting to bring our request
forwardagain? '
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Printed by: Info City of Grand Forks October-01-15 8:33:36AM
Title: Attention: Mayor Frank Konrad : SD51 Page 1 of 1

From: -Jill Gunnarson <gypsyji||@out|ook.com> Sep-30-15 4:02:24 PM

Subject: Attention: Mayor Frank Konrad Ea ED
To: Info City of Grand Forks 1

THE CORPORATIO
N

OF.
THE ITY OF GR/-\l\lD FORKS

Hello Mayor Konrad

Please ?nd attached the invitation to the Grand Opening Celebration for the Bluejoint Recreation Site.
in Grand Forks, B.C., for you and your staff

I do hope that you can make arrangements and attend.

Thank you

E17373L.
5,*%e.

Attachments: Grand Opening |nvitation.docx / Uploaded File (75K)
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Request to be put on the Agenda as a Summary of Information item.

As a tax paying citizen of the city of Grand Forks, I am greatly concerned by the direction in

which the Mayor and Councilare moving with this current Asset Management Plan. I

understand that the Plan is being put into practice and wish to be informed on some of the

details and how they impact the City. Cuts to services, tax and utility rate increases, job cuts to

full time employees are big changes with wide reaching negative implications for the entire

Community.

Respectfully,

Scott Davis
on 12015

THE CORPGRATIONOF
THE CITY or GRAND FORKS

Q60»-"~{‘~(2

wig’
°'’
{W}|‘Se._,o) 5‘
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Printed by: Daphne Popoff October-O6-15 10:59:45AM

From: -SarahWinton 5 8 10AM

Subject: Request to be included in the Sum of

To: I Daphne Popoff I Diane Heinrich

Cc: I Doug Allin TH-lrEHOF SNOF

HiDaphne and Diane, can you please include the blurb below in the Summary of
Info? There won't be an attachment. Thanks

Alex Miller,
Visland Media

Requesting a non—binding letter of support for a potential television show based on
a reality TVshow, for an eco home building competition. Mr. Milleris requesting the
letter to help garner buy-in from potential networks to run the show. The show
would involve a short series where individuals would be in competition to build the
best tiny eco home possible. The homes would be judged by team on completion.
The series would be set in Grand Forks.

THATCouncil determines to provide a non—binding letter of support to Visland Media
for the proposed tiny eco home series to take place in the City of Grand Forks.

Let me know it you have any questions. Sarah

Sarah Winton
Deputy Corporate Officer/Communications
City of Grand Forks
250-442-8266
www.GrandForks.ca

DISCLAIMER:This message is intended for the addressee (s) named and is confidential. The message

must not be circulated or copied without the prior consent of the sender or the sender's

RC

E CORPORATI

O?lillll maul lining.

OCT#6 2015
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Depart Z??éf AdministrativeOf?cer

%

REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING-

VMNI

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL RECEIVES THE STAFF REPORT.

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL DOES NOT ACCEPT THE STAFF REPORT.

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO STAFF FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION.
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING—

%

PolicylLegislation: Water Regulations Bylaw No.1973, Bylaw 2014, and Water Regulations
Bylaw No. 1973-A1

Attachments: Water Regulations Bylaw No.1973 draft, Bylaw No. 2014, and Water
Regulations Bylaw No.1973-A1

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL give final reading to Bylaw 1973-
A1 — Water Regulations Bylaw.

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE TO SUPPORT THE
RECOMMENDATION.

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE NOT TO SUPPORT THE
RECOMMENDATION.

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL COULD CHOOSE TO REFER THE REPORT
BACK TO STAFF FOR MORE INFORMATION.

Page 146 of 290



, THE

Community Charfer,

roiectecl and

NOW HEREFORE, the Council of rporatio City of Grand Forks, in o
meeti sembled NAC as fol

1.

1.1 b law
ma¥

be cited for rpos as the “Water Regulations Bylaw
my ‘ 20 ’.

NITIONS

.1 In this 8 niess context othe require

THE CORPORATION OF CITY OF GRAND FORKS

WATER REGULATIONS BYLAWNO. 1973-A1

A bylaw to provide for the regulation and use of the water system of the City of
Grand Forks

WHEREAS the City of Grand Forks has established and operates a water system
pursuant to its powers under the for the purpose of providing water
to the residents, institutions, commercial and industrial users and all other consumers in
the City;

AND WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Grand Forks deems it necessary to set
the rates, fees, charges and terms and conditions under which water may be supplied,
p used;

T the Co n of the pen
ng as , E TS lows:

TITLE

This all pu es No.
1973-A1 1

2 DEFI

2 ylaw, u the n/vise s:

“Agricultural User” means any Owner of land in the Agricultural Land Reserve
or bona fide agricultural land that is connected to the Waten/vorks System;

“Applicant” means any Owner or duly authorized agent making an application for
Service, Water Connection/Disconnection or the Turn-on or Turn-off of water;

“Backflow Preventer” means a mechanical apparatus installed in a water system
that prevents the backflow of contaminants into the potable Waten/vorks System;

“Bi-month|y” means every two-month period;

“Bone Fide Agricultural Land” means land used for agricultural purposes, as
defined by the BC Assessment Authority;

“Bylaw Enforcement Officer” means a person in a class prescribed under
Section 273 (c) of the Community Charter who is designated by a local government
as a bylaw enforcement officer and every Peace Officer;

Page 1 of 19
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“Comme means all utility and ness properties as defined as
Class 2, nd 6 under IC4 Assessment Act and y institutional and
apartment ngs three re units y resid two 0

within same assessm io, upon appli Own

cil" means th Munici Council of the rporation rand

Stop” means the val a Se pipe cated on the street Ian
Owne s Parcel Boundary;

tome means y person, com or rporati open
service account with City ft: the of be supp! from the
Waterwo System;

“City” means the Corporation of the City of Grand Forks;

“City specifications” means the specifications, drawings and other standards for
works and services established underthe Subdivision, Development and Servicing
Bylaw No. 1424, 1994.

“Collector” means the Person appointed from time to time by Council as the
Collector;

“Col|ector’s Roll” means a list of each property served by the Waten/vorks
System that is liable to water charge and which designates the Owner as a
Domestic User, a Non-Domestic User, an Agricultural User or a combination
thereof;

rcia|” industrial, busi
4, 5 a the B an

buildi with or mo and an ential with r more
units the ent fol written cation by the er;

“Coun e pal Co of City of G Forks;

“Curb ve on rvice lo or e at or
near an r’

“Cus r” an pany co on who has ed a
the r purpose ing ied water City

rks

“Domestic User” means any Owner of land connected to the Waten/vorks System
using water for residential household requirements, sanitation, fire prevention or
lawn and garden irrigation purposes;

“Dwelling Unit” means a building or a part of a building in which a person or
persons live. This means one or more rooms are to be used as or designed as a
residence, which contains sleeping, cooking and sanitary facilities and has an
independent entrance, either directly from outside a building or from a common
hallway inside a building.

“Manager of Operations” means the individual appointed by Council to manage
and oversee the day-to-day operation of the Waten/vorks System or his/her
designate and, along with other City Staff, to administer this bylaw;

“Meter Pit” means a chamber installed below or above the ground over a
residential or irrigation water Service for the purpose of installing a Water Meter;
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the pipes s, fittings, meters, connections and other things necessary for the
purpose h supply;

ce Connecti means the connecting line from the Waterworks System
arcel Bounda and includes all related pipes, shut off valves and other
nances;

Ie-fam Detached Dwelling” means a Dwelling Unit generally designed
occu ied by one family;

nkling mean allow water from the City's water supply to enter onto
lawns, gard and outdoor areas;

“T ntinue the Service to any Owner or any lot by closing a

F*V‘:f‘<,C5\?_f«~x~L»-"

k.’ 5. .m6«’‘ i'<€2o;u‘~q:.;» r 9 '(

.
“~-Mi ykaw am 12;:/rsnm

“Non-Domestic User” means any Owner of land connected to the Waterworks
System that is not using water as a Domestic User or Agricultural User;

“Occupier” has the same meaning as in the Community Charter, as amended
from time to time;

“Owner” has the same meaning as in the Community Charter, as amended from
time to time;

“Parcel Boundary” means the line that defines the perimeter of a parcel of land;

“Person” includes a corporation, partnership or party and the Personal or legal
representatives of a Person to whom the context can apply, according to law;

“Service” means and includes the supply of water to any Owner or any lot and all
, valve

of suc

“Servi on”
to the P ry
appune

“Sing ily
for and p

“Spri ” s to
ens other

urn-off” means to disco
Curb Stop or by such other means as the City finds appropriate;

“Turn-on” means to commence the Service to any Owner or any lot by opening a
Curb Stop or by such other means as the City finds appropriate;

“Water Connection” means the pipes and appurtenances on private property
used or intended to be used to conduct water from the Curb Stop to the private
property;

“Water Meter” means an apparatus or device used for measuring the volume of
water passing through it and includes any accessories such as a remote reader
device and the connecting cable;

“Water User” means any Person who is the Owner or agent for the Owner of any
premises to which the Service is provided and also any Person who is the Occupier
of any such premises and also any Person who is actually a user of water supplied
to any premises;
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its officers, employees, nor hall b for any damage or other loss
caused y ges in water , shulti water or change in direction of

r by reason of the wate containing sediments, d her fo

con ined in this bylaw shall be const to im ity o
rovi water to any rson or property provide a continuous s
or water of any pa quantity or qu

pply wate the City subject to the following add
other co itions out in s bylaw:

(a) the s not responsible fo the failure of the water a resu
accident to the Waten/vorks
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H1535

Each property shall have only one Service Connection except where a separate
connection is required by the Manager of Operations.

The size of the pipe to be used in providing a

_
Service Genneetien to any

premises and also the position in the street in which the _Service Connection
is to be laid shall be determined by the Manager of Operations.

No work of any kind in relation to an Service
,

either for the laying
of a new

_
Service Genneetien or repair of an existing

_
Service,

shall be done by any Person other than a contractor approved by the
Manager of Operations.

CONSTRUCTIONOF THE WATER CONNECTION

5.1

5.2

6.1

Owner’s Parcel Boundary, anda the Water Connection from property line theCurb
Step to his or her private property anel—shallmust submit the application on the
required form(s), as provided by the City and amended from time to time. Such
Applicant shall, on making the application, pay to the City the applicable fee(s) as
set out in Schedule A.

CONSTRUCTION OF THE WATER SERVICE G

Upon a completed application being received for the installation of a Service
Connection, and payment of applicable fee(s) in full, a contractor pre-approved by
the City may install a Service Connection from the WatenNorks System to the
Parcel Boundary and a Curb Stop at the Parcel Boundary.

An Owner is responsible for the installation of a Water Service Cenneetien and a
Curb Stop at the Parcel Boundary, at his or her sole cost.

Upon a completed application being received for the installation of a Water
Connection and payment of the applicable fee(s) in full, the Owner may install a
Water Connection from the property line Gurbstep to the Owner’s private property
and the Manager of Operations shall classify the Owner as either a Domestic User,
a Non-domestic User, an Agricultural User, or any combination thereof.

An Owner is responsible for the installation of a Water Connection, at his or her
sole cost.
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the excavat the insta of the Water Connection has
be spected and a by the

rk of kind relatio Water 00 ection, either for the laying of a
ater Co nectio repair n existing Connection, shall be done by

Person other th a contracto approved by Manager of Operations.

The Owner i solely respons for su ng, i ng and maintainin the Curb
and the connection or at the property between the Service

Genneetien the ater Co nection,

The Owner respo for ny dam caused by the Owner to the Curb Stop
and must ediately otifyth ManaierOperations of any such damage. -

\ \ (\\\ \ \(\\\
\

\\\ \ \\\\ \ \ \\
( \_\ \\ § \\

6.7

6.8

Installation of a Water Connection must comply with the following requirements:

(a) the type and size of pipe used for the Water Connection must meet the
standards for piping as determined by the Manager of Operations or his/her
designate;

(b) all Water Connection lines shall be installed to provide a minimum depth of
1.5 metres cover;

(c) where required by the Manager of Operations, a Backflow Preventer must
be installed at the building as close as possible to the entrance point of the
Water Connection into the building; and

(d) after the Water Connection lines have been installed, the Owner must not
backfill ion until llation

en in pproved City

No wo any in n to a nn
new W n n or of a Water
any an r the

s ible pplyi nstalli
Stop joint line

and W n

is nsible a age
imm n e of

City will repair and bill the repair on utility bill

Where required by the Manager of Operations, an Owner shall install a pressure-
reducing device on his or her property, to the satisfaction of the Manager of
Operations.

An Owner is responsible for maintaining the Water Connection and Backflow
Preventer in good repair and in a clean and sanitary condition at all times, and
must remedy any defect in the Water Connection as soon as the Owner becomes
or is made aware of the defect. The Owner must immediately advise the Manager
of Operations of any defect in the Water Connection.

WATER TURN-OFF I TURN-ON

All applications for the Turn-off or Turn-on of the water Service must be made in
writing to the Manager of Operations not less than forty—eight(48) hours before the
Turn-off or Turn-on is required.
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7.5

8.1

8.2

nnedlo

hmheenvennoil?caiionolth 30 .5

Any unauthorized Person found to have turned the water on or off is guilty of an
offence underthis bylaw and willbe subject to a penalty in accordance with Section
12.11 .

WATER DISCONNECTIONIRECONNECTION

When any building within the City is removed, demolished or abandoned,
application for disconnection of a water Service shall be made in writing, by the
property Owner, on the required form(s) as provided by the City and amended from
time to time and delivered to the City Office. Until such application has been
submitted, water rates may be charged as prescribed in Schedule A to the property
Owner.

All applications for the disconnection or reconnection of the water Connection
service must be made in writing to the Manager of Operations not less than one
(1) week before the disconnection/reconnection is required.

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.3

8.4

8.5

On application by a property Owner or duly authorized agent, on the required
form(s) as provided by the City and amended from time to time, the applicant shall
pay the applicable fee as set out in Schedule A.

Any Person who applies to the City for the Turn-on of the Service Water
Connection shall provide to the Manager of Operations confirmation that the Water
Connection was satisfactorily tested, inspected and approved by the City.

No Person shall make an application for the Turn—offof the Sewiee Water
Connection from any premises in use, or occupied by any other Person, until such
use or occupation has ceased, the premises have been vacated or the occupying
Person has been given notification of thirty (30) days eensents.

On application by a property Owner or duly authorized agent, on the required
form(s) as provided by the City and amended from time to time, the applicant shall
pay the applicable fee as set out in Schedule A.

Any Person who applies to the City for reconnection of the Water Service shall
provide to the Manager of Operations confirmation that the Water Service
Genneetien was satisfactorily tested, inspected and approved by the City.

Any unauthorized Person found to have disconnected from or reconnected to the
water Connection Serviee is guilty of an offence under this bylaw and will be
subject to a penalty in accordance with Section 12.11.
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10.2 Notwithstanding Se 10.1, the C sup and Mete
those properties bui r to

,
20 charge.

103 Onl Mete Ibe instal each Water Co

9.1

9.2

10.

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF WATER

Council may at such times and for such length of time as is considered necessary
or advisable by Council, restrict or prohibit irrigation, yard and garden Sprinkling,
car washing and private pool filling to reduce water usage when it considers water
to be in short supply and every Person shall abide by such restriction or prohibition.

The City may at such times and for such length of time as is considered necessary
or advisable by Council, restrict or prohibit other water uses when it considers
water to be in short supply and every Person shall abide by such restriction or
prohibition.

WATER METERS

ction ity shall ply install Water rs to
It prio ber 31 15, free of

y one Water r shal led for nnection on a property

The Manager of Operations may determine and specify the type and size of Water
Meters for each type of property and use, considering the Manager of Operation’s
estimate of water consumption and other factors considered relevant by the
Manager of Operations.

Every Water Meter shall be installed by a certified plumber or qualified contractor
retained by the Owner of the parcel and approved by the Manager of Operations.

Where water services a single building on private property, the Water Meter shall
be located in the building as close as possible to the entrance point of the Water
Connection into the building, unless othen/vise approved by the Manager of
Operations.

Notwithstanding Section 10.6, the Owner of each newly constructed Single-family
Detached Dwelling in the City shall install a water meter within the Dwelling Unitor
a Meter Pit, as per current industry standards as determined by the Manager of
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10.8

10.9

1o;1o

10.11

10.42,

W
10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Operations, with a Water Meter at the Parcel Boundary. For clarity, a newly
constructed single-family detached dwelling is any sing|e—fami|ydetached dwelling
constructed after adoption of this bylaw. The City will provide a water meter free
of charge up until July—34December 31, 2015. Any new construction building permit
after January 1, 2016 the water meter will be supplied by the City and billed to the
utility account with the home owner being responsible for the installation of the
water meter by a qualified contractor.

Where water services multiple-unit housing or Commercial, industrial or
institutional property, the Water Meter must be located within a meter room or
some other location approved by the Manager of Operations.

The Owner shall maintain the Water Meter on his or her property in good repair
and shall not tamper with the Water Meter in any manner. The Owner shall provide
adequate protection for the Water Meter against freezing, heat and other severe
conditionsthat might damage the Water Meter.

If any breakage,istoppage orother irregularityin a WaterMeter is observed by an
Owner, theOwnershall notify the Manager of Operations immediately.

If a WaterMeterinstalledona property is destroyed, lostor damaged inany way,
the Owner shall repair or replace theWater. Meterat hisorhersole cost.s= ‘

An Owner;must,_at allfreasonable‘,ti;mes,_:jprovidegadequate, convenient, and
. unobstructedaccessto thefCityforinspectinggandreadingthe Water Meter.

No Personshall removeor anywaydisturb WaterMeter except under the
direction of the Manager of Operations. ; s

S

P

P

The Service shall not be activated to a property until a Water Meter has been
installed on the property and any Meter Pit has been inspected by the City and
found to be in compliance with this bylaw.

If the City or an Owner questions the accuracy of the record of a Water Meter, the
City shall designate a qualified professional to remove and test the Water Meter.

lfthe test performed under Section 10.15 discloses that the Water Meter is not less
than 98% accurate in recording the water passing through the Water Meter, the
party questioning the accuracy of the Water Meter shall pay the meter testing fee
specified in Schedule A. Ifthe test performed under Section 10.15 discloses that
the Water Meter is less than 98% accurate in recording the water passing through
the Water Meter, the cost of the test shall be borne by the City.

If the test performed under Section 10.15 discloses that the Water Meter is less
than 98% accurate in recording the water passing through the Water Meter, the
City shall repair or replace the Water Meter, at its own cost.
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2.1

tion.will be responsible for all costs associated with installa

OFFENCES AND PROHIBITIONS

No Person shall:

(a) connect or maintain any connection to, or use water from the Waterworks
System without ?rst obtaining permission from the Manager of Operations
in accordance with this bylaw;

(b) connect, cause to be connected or allow to remain connected any building
on any property already connected to the Waterworks System to any other
source of water;

10.18 If the test performed under Section 10.15 discloses that the Water Meter is less

11.

11.1

12.2

than 98% accurate in recording the water passing through the Water Meter, the
Manager of Operations shall adjust the Owner’s water bill by the amount of the
inaccuracy for a period not exceeding one (1) year. The adjustments shall only
apply to the Owner who overpaid or underpaid and not to any subsequent Owner
of the property.

FAILURE TO INSTALL A WATER METER

If an Owner fails to install a Water Meter as required by this bylaw, the City may,
upon giving notice to the Owner, install a Meter Pit and Water Meter at the Curb
Stop at the sole cost of the Owner. Prior to and including .July—34December 31,
2015 the Owner will be responsible for the difference in cost between in-home
installation and Meter Pit installation. After July—34December 31, 2015, the Owner

(c) connect, cause to be connected or allow to remain connected to the
WatenNorks System any pipe, fixture, fitting, container, appliance or
apparatus, in any manner which, under any circumstances, could cause or
allow any part of the WatenNorks System to become contaminated;

sell, dispose of or othen/vise give away water from the City Waten/vorks
System; unless a written request has been approved by the Manager of
Operations.

(0')

(e) connect any apparatus, fitting, or fixture to the WatenNorks System which
may in any way harm the WatenNorks System.

No Person shall cause, permit or allow any device or apparatus of any kind to be
or remain connected to the Waterworks System or allow it to be operated in such
a manner as to cause sudden large demands for water or othenNise affect the
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(g) iarge outlets.

Notwithstanding Section 12.2 Owner may to the Manager of Operations
in writing for perm to ect a prohi device or apparatus to the

Marks System. Upon rece g permiss m the Manager of Operations,
er may connect a prohibited device apparatus to the Waterworks
subject to any term nd ditio imposed by the Manager of

ions.

No Person shall destroy, injure, obstruct access to. or tamper with any hydrant,
Curb p, pipe, pump or othe re of the Watenn/orks System or the

Water Co ion and no Person any manner, make any additions,
alterations or other changes to the W rks System or the Water Connection,

12

12

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

stability of water pressure in the Waterworks System and, for the purposes of this
section, such prohibited devices and apparatuses include, without limitation:

(a) booster pumps;

(b) quick opening valves or quick closing valves;

flush meters;

rod hopper water closets;

water-operated pumps or siphons;

(f) standpipes;

, an apply
ission conn bited

Wate ivin ion fro
the Own or
System, s a con ns
Operat

valve, Sto r fixtu
nnect shall, in

aten/vo

No Person shall use water from the Waten/vorks System unless that usage is
recorded by a properly functioning Water Meter that is installed and maintained in
accordance with this bylaw.

No Person shall install any piping or other works designed to allow water from the
Waten/vorks System to be used without that usage being recorded by a Water
Meter.

Where the Manager of Operations considers that a Person has violated Section
12.5 or 12.6, the City may install a Meter Pit with a Water Meter at or near the
Parcel Boundary of the property either on the property or on the adjacent highway.

Where the City has installed a Meter Pit with a Water Meter under Section 12.7,
the Owner of the property in respect of which the Meter Pit with a Water Meter was
installed shall pay to the City a fee equal to the cost incurred by the City to install
the Meter Pit and Water Meter, including the cost of the pit and meter.

Page 11 of 19
Page 157 of 290



212 Any Pawn Mu: contravene nnyoftm umviaionno?hn $1ags1mrouah Stage >

ntnnnnRestrictions may be sub a fire as desc?bed ‘r Schedulo 12 —
r

13. SHUT OFF OF WATER SUPPLY

13.1 The Manager of Operations may shut off the supply of
any or all of the following reasons:

12.9 Where a Person has violated Section 12.4, 12.5 or 12.6, the Owner of the property
in respect of which the violation has occurred shall pay to the City an unrecorded
water usage penalty as set out in Municipal Ticket Information Bylaw No. 1957,
and additional charges as described in Schedule A, whether or not the City has
installed a Meter Pit with a Water Meter at or near the Parcel Boundary under
Section 12.7.

water to any property for

(a) a request for Turn-off or discontinuance of the Service;

(b) maintaining, repairing, renovating, replacing, disinfecting or othenNise
operating the Waten/vorks System;

(c) an emergency that threatens the safety of the WatenNorks System or the
public;

and the City may shut off the supply of water to any property for any or all of the
following reasons;

(d) non—compliance with any provision of this bylaw;

(e) shortage of water supply pursuant to Section 9.1 or 9.2 of this bylaw.

NOTICES OF WATER SHUT OFF

Page 12 of19

12.10 Charges imposed under Section 12.8 or 12.9 are due and payable within 30 days
of the date on which an invoice setting out the amount of the fee is mailed to the
address of the Owner as shown on the assessment roll for the property referred to
in those Sections and if unpaid on December 31 of the year in which the charges
became due and payable, may be collected in the same manner and with the same
remedies as property taxes.

12.11 Any Person who contravenes any of the provisions of this bylaw is liable, upon
summary conviction; to a minimum fineof not less thanQnegThousand Dolla

rs($1,000.00) and a maximum fine of Ten Thousand Dollars($10,000.00) andthe
cost ofsprosecution. Every day during which there is an infraction of thisbylaw
shall constituteanseparatesoffence.

1

12.12 Any Person who contravenes any of the prov sions of the Stage 1 through Stage 4
Watering Restrictions may be subject to a fine as described in Schedule 12 — A3
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14.5 Notice under Sections 14.1, 14.3 and 14.4 may be given by one or more of the
llowingz

postin notice on the property;

rovid notice on an Owner's water bill;

mailing notice to the address supplied by the Own ress
property;

(d) telepho ing the Owner, which may include speaki the Owne
0 ng a message at the telephone number su Owner.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.6

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

Where water supply is to be shut off for non-compliance with any provision of this
bylaw, the City willgive thirty (30) days notice to the Owner.

Where water supply is to be shut off for reason of non-compliance with any
provision of this bylaw, the City will give the Person affected the opportunity to
make representations to Council in respect of such non-compliance.

Where water supply is to be shut off for reason of shortage of water supply
pursuant to Section 9.1 or 9.2 of this bylaw, the City will give at least seven (7)
days notice, but no notice will be given where safety of life or property is at risk.

Where water supply is to be shut off for maintenance, repair, renovation,
replacement, disinfection or other operation of the WatenNorks System, the City
willgive at least two (2) working days notice for scheduled work, but no notice wil

lbe given where safety of life or property is at risk.

fo

(a) g

(b) P ing

(c) er or the add of the

n ng directly to r
r leavi pplied by the

The City is not responsible for any notice failing to reach an Owner or other Water
User prior to the shut off of water.

WATER USE CHARGES

Property Owners shall be responsible for payment of all rates for water used and
consumed on properties owned by them.

The user rates and charges specified in Schedule A are imposed and levied for
Water Services supplied by the City. All such rates shall be due and payable on
or before the date shown as the DUE DATE on the Bi-monthly billing rendered by
the City. These rates may also be paid on the City's Tax/Utility Preauthorized Pre-
Payment Plan.

User rates and charges not paid by the DUE DATE shall be subject to an overdue
account penalty, as set out in the current Fees and Charges Bylaw, on the working
day afterthe DUE DATE and monthly thereafter.

Page 13 of19
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.8

onthly

n appli n, the City wll qualifyin mers, to make equal monthly
nts. payments wil calculated Id during the period ending in

ecember, tota mated unt that be payable by the customer
the year. Application accepted at time of the year. Allaccounts
reconciled in December.

for the
on the plan for at least 0

n provided the ccount is not in arrears and the
1) year.

stomer qua
customer expects to

The equal ayment may be te by customer, or the City, if the
customer ot m ned his cred the satisfaction of the City. The City
dee to b unsatisfactory re son, two payments fail to be

15.4

15.5

15.6

157

15

15.9

For any new water Service connected to the City system during a Bi-monthly billin
gperiod, full basic charges forthe billing period will apply and the user rates relating

to consumption shall be based on recorded consumption. If no meter reading is
available, the user rate will be prorated over the number of days from connection
to the end of the billing period.

For any Water Service disconnected or reconnected from the City system, Section
8 of this bylaw shall apply. Should the property Owner elect to have water Service
to a building turned on or off, as described in Section 7 of this bylaw, water basic
charges and user rates willcontinue to be charged.

The charges prescribed in Schedule A to cover the cost of disconnecting or
reconnecting the service or turning the water supply “off”or “on” shall apply.

User rates shall be invoiced on a Bi-m basis.

Upo catio I permit g custo
payme The I be to yie
D the I esti amo Id
during willbe any
will be

A cu will Iify pla a
be ne (

p plan rminated the
has n aintai it to

ms credit e if, for any a
honoured. On the reconciliation date, or termination, the amounts payable by the
customer to the City for water Service actually consumed during the equal payment
period will be compared to the sum of equal payments made during the period.
Any resulting amount owing by the customer will be paid to the City. An excess of
payments over charges willbe paid or credited by the City to the customer. Ifsuch
amounts are less than $10.00 (ten dollars), they will be carried fonNard and
included in the calculation of the equal payments for the next period.

All rates and charges remaining unpaid on the 31st day of December in each year
shall be added to and form part of the taxes payable in respect of the land and
improvements therein, and shall be entered on the Collector's Roll as taxes in
arrears.

INSPECTION
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18.1 The "Corporation of the Cit of Grand Forks Waterworks Regulation Bylaw No.
' are hereby

repealed.

19. ENACTMENT

19.1 This bylaw is to take effect upon adoption by the Council of the Corporation of the
City of Grand Forks.

READ A FIRST TIME this 17"‘day of August. 2015.

READ A SECOND TIME this 17"‘day of August, 2015.

16.1

16.2

17.

17.1

18.

READ

The Manager of Operations and any Bylaw Enforcement Officer may enter on any
property at any reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting and ascertaining
whether the regulations and requirements of this bylaw are being observed.

No Person shall obstruct or interfere with the Manager of Operations or any Bylaw
Enforcement Officer in the performance of his or her duties or the exercise of his
or her powers under this bylaw.

SEVERABILITY

Ifany portion of this bylaw is held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this bylaw.

REPEAL

A THIRD TIME this 17"‘day of August, 2015.

FINALLY ADOPTED this 14”‘day of September, 2015.

Mayor Corporate Officer
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(b)

d)

Commercial, Industrial & Institutional
*NOTE: Water Meter Mandatory

A! cost by Contractor. including any additional service costs
itemized in (d), plus 15%

Renewal (upgrading, including meter retro?t)

At Cos by Contractor, including any additional service
iteml in (d), plus 15%

Add nal service costs not included in (a), (b), and (c) a

Bylaw No. 1973-A1
Page 1 of 3

SCHEDULE “A”

SERVICE CHARGES

1. Charges for installation of water service:

(a) Residential: 19 mm diameter (3/4") & 24.5 mm diameter (1”)
*NOTE: Water Meter Mandatory

At Cost by Contractor, including any additional service costs
itemized in (d), plus 15%

(c

t costs
zed

itio bove:

i) Service or main extension (greater than 25.4 mm diameter and/or
where the service line exceeds 15 m in length) —

ii) Restoration including but not limited to: asphalt road repair,
concrete curb, sidewalk (concrete), and boulevard landscaping —

2 Charges for each time the water supply is turned on/off

During normal working hours (Monday — Friday) $ 50.00

3. Charges for after-hours callout — evenings, weekends, statutory
holidays

Private property issue $ 250.00

Page 17 of19
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At Cost by Contractor, plus 15%

meter

A: cost by Contracto plus 15%

*Anymodifications water meter i that result ment
manual read of the willresult ng charge.

Schedule
Bylaw No. 1973-A1

Page 2 of 3

4. Purchase of water from City Bulk Water Facility

Rate per cubic meter or portion thereof $4.00

5 Water Meter Installation — subject to Sections 10.2, 10.7 & 11.1

(a) Standard in-house installation

At Cost by Contractor, plus 15%

(b) In-house installation with modifications*

(c) Pit

to nstallation in the require for a
meter in a readi

6. Additional Charges

(a) Manual meter reading charge — per occurrence $ 25.00

Meter re—readat Customer’s request — per occurrence $ 25.00

Meter testing at Customer’s request — per occurrence At Cost

Water meter tampering charge — per occurrence $200.00

Charge for damage due to tampering

At Cost by Contractor for installation of new water meter plus the water
meter tampering charge.

Page 18 of19
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Commercial
of?ae
Properties
(water use
restricted to
slaif
washroom)
Commercial
(C|assO6)
Properties not
Iis?edbelow
Large Industrial
(Class 04)
Properties
Commercial
laundry, car
wash

Schedule A
Bylaw No. 1973-A1

Page 3 of 3

7. User Rates — Effective July 1, 2014

Per Unit Bi- Per Account Per Account Per Cubic Bi-Monthly
monthly Fixed (per meter) Bi- Bi-monthly Meter Variable Water

Charge & monthly Fixed Customer Charges for
Capital Charge & Charge Non-Metered,
Charge Capital Per Residence

Charge

User Class
Metered Multi-
Family
Apartment (one
tax»foiio)

Properties

Hotels,
Restaurants,
Malls
Institutions,
schools,
recreation
facilities
(arenas, pools)
irrigation
systems
Buildings not
connected to
Water System
on lots where
service is
available
Residential
Properties not
metered
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orporate

City of Grand Forks Water Regulations Bylaw No. 1973

19. ENACTMENT

19.1 This bylaw is to take effect upon adoption by the Council of the Corporation of
the City of Grand Forks.

READ A FIRST TIME this 215‘day of July, 2014.

READ A SECOND TIMEthis 213‘day of July, 2014.

READ A THIRD TIME this 215‘day of July, 2014

FINALLYADOPTED this 18"‘day of August , 2014.

Officer

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of Bylaw No. 1973, as
passed by the Municipal Council of the City of Grand Forks on the 18"‘day of August,

2014.

Corporate Officer of the MunicipalCouncil of the
City of Grand Forks

Date Signed

Page 15 of18
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Commercial

washroom)
Cummercial

Industrial

Properties
fCla|

Properlies

City of Grand F~"r.:r§<.3Water F3%a<2gL:|at§{3m:Bylaw No. 1973

7. User Rates — Effective July 1, 2014

User Class
Metered Multi-
Family
Apartment (one
tax folio)

Of?ce
Properties
(water use
restricted to
staff

(C|assO6)
Properties not
listed below
Large
(Class 04)

Comme
laundry, car
wash

Hotels,
Restaurants,
Malls
Institutions,
schools,
recreation
facilities
(arenas, pools)
irrigation
systems

Buildings not
connected to
Water System
on lots where
service is
available
Residential
Properties not
metered

Per Unit Bi-

Charge 8.
Capital
Charge

$28. 50

$45.25

Per Account
monthly Fixed (per meter) Bi-

monthly Fixed
Charge &

Capital
Charge

$26.50

$59.00

$59.00

$59.00

$59.00

$59.00

$21.50

Per Account
Bi-monthly
Customer

Charge

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

$7.00

Per Cubic
Meter

$0.113

$0.113

$0.124

$0.124

$0.124

$0.124

$0.124

Schedule
Bylaw No. 1973

Page 3 of 3

Bi-Monthly
Variable Water

Charges for
Non-Metered,

Per Residence

$16.40

Page 18 of18
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INTRODUCED this 7th day of April, 2015.

Read a FIRST time this 20*“day of April, 2015.

Read a SECOND time this 20”‘day of April, 2015

Read a THIRDtime this 20"‘day of April, 2015.

FINALLYADOPTED day of May, 2015..

r — Diane Heinrich

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of Bylaw No. 2014,
the “Cityof Grand Forks Water Regulations Amendment Bylaw No. 2014, 2015"

,as passed by the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the
City of Grand Forks on the day of

Corporate Officer of the Municipal Council of the
City of Grand Forks
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING-

To: Mayor and Council

From: Corporate Services

Date: October 13"‘,2015

Subject: Counci|’s consideration to approve existing Bylaw No. 1999 as the
Election's Bylaw for the upcoming By-Election

Recommendation RESOLVED THAT Council determines that Bylaw No. 1999, “A
bylaw to provide for the determination of various procedures for the
conduct of local government elections and other voting”, is
satisfactory as the bylaw to be utilized for the upcoming by-
election.

BACKGROUND: With a by-election in our future, the City of Grand Forks is legislatively obligated to
have an Elections Procedure Bylaw in place. We have the ability to adopt an amended or new bylaw, or
resolve to accept the existing bylaw. Our legislation dictates that an elections bylaw needs to be in place
at least six weeks prior to the start of the nomination period. The City’s current Bylaw No. 1999, 2014,
which determines various procedures for the conduct of local government elections and other voting,
addresses all the procedures and needs of the upcoming By-Election.

Because the projected caliber of the by-election is far less than that of a major election, Council may opt
not to have or reduce, the number of venues for Special Voting Opportunities. If this is Counci|’s wish,
Staff can put fon/vard an amended Elections bylaw to reflect as such.

The City is legislatively obligated to have one advance voting opportunity, which is Staff’s
recommendation at this time; however, with reference to Section 3, the Chief Election Officer would have
the authorization to add an additional Advance Voting opportunity if the need presented itself during the
election process.

Section 6 refers to the Ballots section, and although there is reference to voting machines under (b),
Staff’s recommendation is that a standard paper ballot without the use of machines would be the most
financially viable option for the by-election. The reference to voting machines would only be viable should
the caliber of the by-election increase.

Council was presented with the existing elections bylaw at the Committee of the Whole on September
14”‘. This bylaw is now presented at a Regular meeting for the decision to choose to utilize the existing
bylaw, as presented, or to direct staff to create an amended bylaw with consideration of changes as
directed by Council.

Benefits or lmgacts of the Recommendation:

General: The elections bylaw willbe in place considering the upcoming by-election
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Strategic lmpact:

Financial:

PolicyILegislation

Attachments:

Recommendation:

OPTIONS:

N/A

It is estimated that one by-election would cost approximately $8000 to $10,000
dollars and that funding for this would be included in the 2016 Financial Plan.

The municipality is legislatively required to have an Election Procedures Bylaw in
accordance with the Local Government Act

-Elections Bylaw No. 1999; -Excerpts from the Local Government Act as it
pertains to By-Elections

RESOLVED THAT Council determines that Bylaw No. 1999, “A
bylaw to provide for the determination of various procedures for the
conduct of local government elections and other voting”, is
satisfactory as the bylaw to be utilized for the upcoming by-
election.

1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL RECEIVES THE STAFF REPORT.

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL DOES NOT ACCEPT THE STAFF REPORT.

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO STAFF FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION OR AMENDMENTS.

t Head or CAO Chief Administrative 0 er

REQUESTFORDECISIBN
— REGULARMEETING—

VMND
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Governme

"Local Government" means:

(a) in relation to a Municipality, the Council

"Other Voting" means voting on a matter referred to in Section 158 of the Local
Government Act.

Register of Resident Electors

As authorized under Section 62 of the Local Government Act the most current
list of voters prepared under the Elections Act, existing at the time an election or
other voting is to be held, is deemed to be the register of resident electors for the
Municipality.

Additional General Voting Opportunities

The Council authorizes the Chief Election Officer to establish additional general
voting opportunities for general voting day for each election or specified election
or other voting and to designate the voting places and voting hours with the limits
set out in Section 96(2) of the Local Government Act for such voting
opportunities.

Additional Advance Voting Opportunities

As authorized under Section 98 of the Local nt Act. the Council
authorizes the Chief Election Officer to establish additional advance voting
opportunities for each election or specified election or other voting to be held in
advance of general voting day and to designate the voting places, establish the
date and the voting hours for these voting opportunities.

Special Voting Opportunities

(a) In order to give electors who may othewvise be unable to vote, an
opportunity to do so, the Council will provide Special Voting Opportunity
as authorized under Section 99 of the Local Government Act for each
election or specified election or other voting at the following places and
shall be open during the hours hereinafter specified:

1 Phoenix Manor Retirement Home
876-72"“Avenue, Grand Forks BC
- the voting place shall be open as determined by the Chief

Elections Officer

2. Boundary Lodge Assisted Living
7130 — 9”‘Street, Grand Forks, BC
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yor Bfi ifvorporate

7. Order of Names on Ballot

The order of names of candidates on the ballot will be determined by alphabetical
order in accordance with Section 106 of the Local Government Act.

8. Number of Scrutineers at Voting Places

As authorized under Section 110(2) (d) of the Local Government Act, the number
of scrutineers for each candidate that may attend at an election is a maximum of
one scrutineer for each ballot box in use.

9. Resolution of Tie Votes after Judicial Recount

In the event of a tie vote after judicial recount, the tie vote will be resolved by
conducting a lot in accordance with Section 141 of the Local Government Act.

11. This bylaw may be cited as the "Procedures for the Conduct of Local
Government Election and Other Voting Bylaw No. 1999, 2014".

INTRODUCED this 26"‘day of May, 2014.

Read a FIRST time this 9th day of June, 2014.

Read a SECOND time this 9th day of June, 2014.

Read a THIRD time this 9th day of June, 2014.

FINALLY REC ERED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of June, 2014.

an Taylor Officer, Diane Heinrich

CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of bylaw No. 1999, as adopted by the
Municipal Council of the City of Grand Forks on the 23rd day of June, 2014.

Corporate Officer of the Municipal Council of the
City of Grand Forks
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Local Government Act

http://www.bclaws.ca/Recon/docurnent/ID/freeside/963 23 04 2015-02-19

Page 6 of 89

129 (1) [quorum for conducting business] of the Community

Charter.

(4) As soon as practicable after a vacancy occursfor which an election
under this section is to be held, the local government must appoint a chief
election officer for the election.

(5) The chief election officer must set a general voting day for the election,

@ which must be on a later than 80 da chief
election officer wa

(6) If the number of members of a local government is reduced to less
than a guorum, the minister may either

(a) order that the remaining members of the local government

constitute a quorum until persons are elected and take office to
fill the vacancies, or

(b) appoint qualified persons to fill the vacancies until persons
are elected and take office to fill them.

(7) A person elected in a by-election holds office until the end of the term

of the office in respect of which the election was held.

Minister's order for election to be conducted

38 (1) If an election is not held or a vacant office is not otherwise filled as
required under this Act, the minister may

(a) set a general voting day for the election, appoint a chief
election officer and otherwise arrange for the election to be

conducted, or

(b) order the designated local government officer to arrange for
the election to be conducted.

(2) If considered necessary in relation to an election under subsection (1),

the minister may make orders to provide for the conduct of the election
and for the governing of the municipality or regional district until the
candidates elected in that election take office, including orders that

provide for exceptions to provisions of this Act and regulations or bylaws

under this Act.

(3) The general voting day for an election under this section must be on a
Saturday set by the minister or by the chief election officer in accordance
with the directions of the minister.

Election bylaws

39 (1) Unless otherwise provided, in order for a bylaw under
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(a) this Part,

(b) section 551 [regulation of signs and advertising], or

(c) section 8 (4) [fundamental powers — signs and advertising]
of the Community Charter

apply in relation to a general local election, the bylaw must be adopted
of the the

l l

(2) Unless otherwise provided, in order for a bylaw referced to in

s
bylaw must be adopted at least 6 weeks the first day of the

nomination period for the election

Costs of elections

40 (1) The costs of an election, including the costs of registration of electors
for the election, are the responsibility of the municipality or regional
district for which the election is held unless otherwise agreed.

(2) The costs of an election may be shared under an agreement between
the local government and another local government, the council of the City
of Vancouver or a board of school trustees for the conduct of the election
by one party for the other or in conjunction with an election of the other.

(3) A local government that is a party to an agreement under subsection
(2) may, by bylaw, provide that the bylaws of the other party respecting

elections apply to elections conducted under the agreement.

(4) An agreement referred to in subsection (2) may provide for a party to
conduct only some of the election proceedings for or in conjunction with
the other party.

(5) An election to which an agreement referred to in subsection (4) applies
is valid despite the agreement and any bylaws in relation to it having the
effect of creating differences in election proceedings between different
parts of the election area for which an election is held.

(6) Without limiting subsection (4), an agreement referred to in that
subsection may allow a local government to restrict the persons who may
vote at the election proceedings conducted under the agreement to
persons who are entitled to be registered as electors in relation to a
specified part of the election area for which the election is held.

(7) If a restriction under subsection (6) applies, on any day on which an
advance voting opportunity conducted under the agreement is open to

electors of only part of the election area for which the election is held, an
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Iey Child Care Society
(978 — 72"‘Avenue

iors Citizens (686 — 72
Iiary Thrift Shop (7239

REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING—

t.\\kN!

To: Mayor and Council

From: Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 13, 2015

Subject: 2016 Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2018

Recommendation RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL give first three readings to Bylaw No.
2018 - 2016 Permissive Tax Exemptions

BACKGROUND:

2016 Annual Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2018 was presented to the Committee of the Whole on
September 14, 2015. This bylaw must be adopted by Council prior to October 31, 2015 to permissively
exempt certain properties from municipal taxation in 2016. As per legislation, the City advertised the tax
exemption notice for public consideration on September 16"‘and September 23"’,2015 in the Grand
Forks Gazette.

The application for each group, including financial statements, follows this report.

The following areas of land surrounding the buildings for public worship and hospitals are being exempted
under Section 224(2)(f) of the Community Charter.

The United Church — 920 Central Avenue
The Pentecostal Church — 2826 75"‘Avenue
The Catholic Church — 7249 9”‘Street
The Anglican Church — 7252 7"‘Street
The Mennonite Brethren Church — 7048 Donaldson Drive
Christ Lutheran Church — 7328 19'“Street
Grand Forks Christian Centre — 7525 4"‘Street
Jehovah’s Witnesses Church — 7680 Donaldson Drive
First Baptist Church — 2495 76"‘Avenue

The estimated value of permissive exemptions above for 2016 is $1,783.77.

As per Section 224(2)(a) and (i), the bylaw will also exempt the following recreational and non-profit
organizations from the payment of the amount of expected City property taxes as outlined below on
properties owned or occupied by:

Name Estimated 2016 Property Taxes Exempted

Grand Forks Curling Club (7230 215‘Street) $ 8,457.01
Grand Forks Masonic Building Society (366 Market Avenue) $ 387.41
Sunshine Val — Little People’s Centre $ 1,505.45

)
Slavonic Sen "d Avenue) $ 520.62
Hospital Auxi — 2"“Street) $ 1,982.78
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING-

V;\

Royal Canadian Legion (7353 — 6"‘Street) $ 3,831.54
Grand Forks Senior CitizensDrop In Centre (City Park) $ 3,376.71

(565 — 715Avenue)
Phoenix Manor Society (876 — 72"“Avenue) $ 2,608.21
Grand Forks & Dist HousitrlgSociety (Boundary Lodge) $ 4,027.00

(7130 — 9 Street)
Whispers of Hope/BETHS (7212 Riverside Drive) $ 3,187.87

The estimated total value of permissive exemptions for the organizations above for 2016 is $29,884.60

At Committee of the Whole, Council questioned whether the organizations in question were not for profit
organizations. With the exception of the Curling Club, the current organizations being exempted must be
non-profit corporations to qualify for the exemption. The Curling Club may be exempted as they are an
athletic club.

Council’s past practice has been to maintain the status quo with regard to permissive exemptions. The
current application form does not ask if the applicant is a not for profit organization. Should Council wish,
in 2016 we can amend the application to include this question. The City could also require incorporation
documents for the initial application and/or a yearly Certificate of Good Standing from each organization.

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:

General: The properties being exempted are used to provide valuable services to the
Community. Granting tax exemptions will assist these organizations in continuing
the operation of their facilities and in providing services to the residents of the
community.

Financial: Granting permissive tax exemptions to the properties listed above will reduce
taxes collectible by the City by approximately $ 31,668

PolicyILegis|ation: Section 224 of the Community Charter

Attachments: 2016 Annual Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2018

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL give first three readings to Bylaw No.
2018 - 2016 Permissive Tax Exemptions

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCILRECEIVES THE STAFF REPORT

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL
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3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO STAFF FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION.

K8/<'¢,0ZL(/30L
DeparpfnentHeador CAO ‘ChiefAdministrative Officer
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The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPT STATUS

_ _
‘?:EFr. ZS Zens _ _ _

Note: Application must e received by at City Hall for consideration for tax exemption
in the following year

Name of applica

Mailing address r"

Civic Address of the Property(s) . ~+ '

For Which the Exemption is being applied for: Z‘ 5

Legal Description of the Property(s): LOT’ B . 3 5‘.‘B. 73

Plan 4<AP5Li<aus

Contact pers T‘$0 V“ L093 V‘

Title: V‘/‘GVW6 F’

Telephone Number: Li‘-t; - 33) la Email Address:

Total Budg

Most Current Financial Statement must be attached to this form

Other sources of fundi 56 CL C1

/cont‘d on next page
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Describe your organization. Include a short history of your organization and briefly describe its goals
and objectives. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

H’)

How does your organization benefit the Community of Grand Forks?
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$3.
_ $43.

$2.

itv s‘ .2
$0

Liquor Sale

Recycle posit/Return
>

$3 ,87

$

Actual 2014-2015

Bonspiels

Confectionary

Dues, Club Membership
Dues, Curling
Dues, Curl BC
Dues, Spare
Dona?ons
Facil Rentals
Ice Rentals
Interest

s
Locker Rental
Miscellaneous Revenue
Raf?es

TV Monitors
Rentals - Tables/Chairs/Linens

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES
Cost of Goods Sold

Beer & Liquor
Confectlonarv
R0Ck§h9,P_

,

P?zes

De
Sub Contracts

General 81 Administrative
Advertising & Promotions
Business Fees and Licenses
Courier & Freight
Dona?ons
Dues (Curl BC)

ment Purchases
Ice Supplies
Insurance

Janitorial & Cleaning Supplies
Lounge Supplies

Financials

$9,656.89

$1,776.53
240.00
797.98
385.00

$924.00
$1,450.00
13 77.86

.00
$0.00

$41,415.78

$1,100.00

$750.49
$0.00

$1,410.76
$1,481.56
$1,006.38

$100.00

$129,146.44

$16,648.12
$1,874.06
$1,893.59
$4,261.59
$4,299,-99.

-$20.00
-$88.30

3 5.00

$628.76
$650.00
$850.56

0.00
$2,505.00
$8,988.30
$2,597.80
$3,223.00

$125.55
1 885.03
$517.48
$624.41

$5,000.00

REVENUE

Catering»
__ __

CUr|in9, Club,BU,C,K$/_G__ifC,Certi?cate
s

!5.Q.!!_i,9

AdVe"ti5i”91.§l9_D.$..§$ TFQJ?h.i¢§ $5,373-21

_I!"te"¢5t &_..B§?'S._.gJ_§['Q§§,,

R°CkT,§h99
,_ _

Special Events

_Qf?.9§.TS.TuJ2p!
L<:§,
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Com

Repairs & Maintenance
Securitv
Telecommunications
Travel
Trophies

Utilities
Workers

Difference

Densa?on

TOTALEXPENSES

$1,770.43
$272.00

$2,291.74
$70.00

$577.86
$28,244.19

$447.76
$123,913.93

$5,232.51
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CORP
THECITY

OR/«T ION
GRANDFORKS

APPLICATION FOR TAX EXENIPT STATUS

Name of applicant: Grand Forks Masonic Building Society

Mailing address: Box 657 Grand Forks BC VOH 1H0

Civic address of property for which the Exemption is being applied for:
366 Market Avenue Grand Forks BC

Legal description of property: Lot 5 Block 10 Plan 23 SDYD

Contact persons: T. Gooderharn PM B. Ortis PM

Telephone #’s: 250 442-3025 250 442-3062

Email: grandforksoptica1@gmail.com

Current ?nancial statement is enclosed. As membership dues are our primary source of
income, the only other income we generate is through the rental of our hall. We are
looking at some improvements to the building over the next few years, ?mding to be
raised from our members and fund raising through pancake breakfasts and garage sales.

Masonry has been making good men better, as a fraternity, for centuries. We support the
province-wide Cancer Car Program, that provides free transportation for cancer patients
attending appointments.To date, the Cancer Car mileage clock has passed 2 million
miles and 627,431 patient trips. Our Masons, through the Grand Lodge of British
Columbia and Yukon, have distributed over $11,000 in busaries to deserving local
students in our area over the past 5 years.

T.Gooderham PM PM

JUL1'32015
THE
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Grand Forks Masonic Building Society
Financial Statement as of 30 June 2015

Balance Forward 31 May 2014

Deposits - Deposit Adjustment - May
8 July - Yard Sale

10 September - Yard Sale
12 September - Gavel Ra?le
12 September - Yard Sale
15 October - OES
30 October - Banquet Raf?e

13 November - Jr Wardens Fund
18 December - Lunch Rm Floor
10 February 2015 -

19 March - OES +
15 April - Harmony - Rent
21 May - OES - Rent

Cheques 703 - 25/07/’ 14 - D Dale
704 16/09/’14 - City of GF
705 16/09/’14 - Fortis
706 16/09/’ 14 - D Dale
707 4/11/’14 - D Dale
708 4/11/’l4 — City ofGF
709 4/11/’14 - Fortis
710 4/11/’l4 -Min ofFinance
711 3/02/’15 -City ofGF
712 2/02/’15 - Fortis
713 6/02/’ 15 - Grand Lodge
714 10/02/’15 -Fortis
715 15/04/’l5 - City ofGF
716 15/04/’l5 - Fortis
71715/04/’15 -DDale
718 15/06/’15 - D Dale
719 15/06/’15 - City of GF
720 15/06/’ 15 - Fortis

Service Charges
Balance
Outstanding Bills Dave Dale

Home Hardware
City of Grand Forks

60.00
500.00
715.00
132.00
197.50
400.00
40.00

209.64
840.00
250.00
228.00

1,750.00
360.00

500.00
301.66

89.30
500.00
442.00
142.46
86.13

25.00
155.66
198.29
30.00

154.52
160.68
201.85
500.00
501.00
154.30
82.34
41.25

$ 1,000.00 Bldg Insurance
1,500.00 Banquet Room Flooring
171.08

182.15

5,864.29

4,307.69
1,556.60
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Z0/5”The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPT

Note: Application must be received by July 31, 2015 at City Hall
in the following year.

Name of applicant:

Mailing address

Civic Address of the Property(s)
For Which the Exemption is being applied

Legal Description of the Property(s)

Contact person

Title

Telephone Number: 250"’/[12~57:lfi E

Total Budget:?;_7—_3‘ 20:1
Most Current Financial Statement must be attached to this form.

Other sources of funding

/cont’d on next page
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The Corgoration of the Ciy of Grand Forks

Describe your organization. Include a short history of your organization and briefly describe its goals
and objectives. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

How does your organization benefit the Community of Grand Forks?

Authorized Signature

Page 209 of 290



Page 210 of 290



Page 211 of 290



SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

MARCH 31, 2014

CONTENTS

£432

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

Statement of Financial Position 2 - 3

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 4

Statement of Cash Flows 5

ChildCare Programs Statement of Operations 6

Boundary Child Care Resource and Referral

Statement of Operations
I

7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
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I have rcvicwutl the slnlcltlent uI'i'in4Incia| position ofsurlsliim: Va
201/! and the slnlclncnls of ulmllges in net assets, operations and
review was nnnlc in accordance with Canadl 1 generally accepted
accordingly cunsistctl primarily of enquiry. analytical procedures
supplied to Inc by the society.

Caro Society as at March3 l,
for the year then ended. My
for review engagements and
ssiun related to ini‘onnatiun

Lia Azhure Inc
CERTIFIEDGENERALACCOUNTANT 7157 3rd Street

BOX1329
Grand Forks, BC VOH 1H0

Phone: (250) 442-0141

SUNSHINEVALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIET
Y

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Sunshine Valley ChildCare Society

lley Child
cash ?ow

standards
and discu

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently I do not express an audit opinion on these ?nancialstatements.

Based on my review, nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that these ?nancialstatements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Pro?t Organizations .

Grand Forks, BC
September I 7, 2014 CERTIFIEDGENERAL
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SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited)

AS AT MARCH 31, 2014

ASSETS

2014 2013

CURRENT
Cash and short term deposits $ 49,906 $ 4],] 15
Restricted cash (Note 5) 26,163 36,093
Accounts receivable 12,653 11,114
Advances to Employees 785 |,345
Prepaid expenses 525 505
GST and HST receivable 1.127 2.731

91,159 92,903

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2(0) and 3) 183,237 191,086

$ 274.396 $ 283.989

ON OF THE SOCIETY:

Chairperson

Treasurer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial

Page 214 of 290



S 363

502

743

CURRENT

UNRESTRICTED

SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited)

AS AT MARCH 31, 2014

LIABILITIES

2014 2013

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,697 $ 5,158
Wages, vacation and other payroll liabilities 27,834 23,990
Pavroll deductions and bene?ts navable 5.489

38,894

NET ASSETS

INVESTMENT IN CAPITALASSETS 183,237 191,087

INTERNALLY RESTRICTED (Note 7) 33,155 42,987

19.1 10 15,278

249,352

2 96 $ 283.989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial statements.

235
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SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning balance

Increase (decrease) in investment in capital assets

Purchase of capital assets

Reduction of debt incurred to purchase
capital assets

Depreciation on building and equipment

Loss on disposal of capital assets

Ending balance

INTERNALLY RESTRICTED

Beginning balance

Increase (decrease) in internally restricted funds

Ending balance (Note 4)

UNRESTRICTED

Beginning balance

Child Care Programs excess of receipts
over expenditures

Decrease (Increase) in internally restricted
funds

Ending balance

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(Unaudited)

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDMARCH 31, 2014

2014 2013

$ 191,087 $ 192,903

471 1,389

6,288

(8,126) (9,493)

(195)

$ 183,237 $ 191,087

42,987 $ 44,087

(9.832) (1.100)

$ 33,155 $ 42,987

$ 15,278 $ 37,186

(3,961) (13,700)

7.793 (8.208)

$ 19,110 $ 15,278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited
)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

2014 2013

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts

V
371,807 $ 392,772

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (373,662) (408,117)
Interest received 291 187'
interest paid (708) (758)
I-1STreceived L604 323

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS (668) (15,593)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to capital assets (471) (1,389)
Decrease (Increase) in restricted cash 9.930 ( 10,238)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 9-459 (H.627)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from (to) shareholders
Increase ) in loniz-termdebt (7.669)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING (7.669)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 8,791 (34,889)

CASH. beginning ofyear 41.115 76.004

CASH. end of year $ 49.906 3;

CASH. is defined as
Cash 41.] 15

$ 49,906 $ 41,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial statements.

41,115

$ - $
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(2.03

SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

BOUNDARY CHILD CARE RESOURCE AND REFERRAL STATEMENT OF OPERATION
(Unaudited)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

2014 2013

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES
OVER RECEIPTS (2,039) (2,084)

Purchase of

Net Expenditures over
Receipts after capital
assets purchases $ 9) $ (2.084

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial statements.

PURCHASE OF CAPITAL ASSETS

assets
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SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILD CARE SOCIETY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Review Engagement Report)

MARCH 31, 2014

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Sunshine Valley Child Care Society is a non—profrtorganization whose purposeis to recognize and
respond to the changing child care needs for children and families by providing and encouragin

grelevant programs and support services within the Boundary Region. The society is a registered charity
within the definition of the Income Tax Act and therefore, is exempt from income taxes and may issu

echaritable receipts.

The Boundary Child Care Resource & Referral program serves the needs of children, parents,
caregivers and the community in the Boundary area by promoting, enhancing, and delivering a variety
of quality child care program support services. This program is funded by the Ministry of Children and
Family Development.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Revenue recognition

The deferral method of accounting for contributions is used. Contributions made for a speci?c
purpose are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred.
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount can
be reasonably determined and collection is reasonably assured.

(b) Contributed services

Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the society in carrying out its service delivery
activities. Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not

recognized in the ?nancial statements.

(0) Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the time of purchase. During the 20 l0 year end, a review was
done with management of the costs of the building and equipments currently being used and a

projection of the age of these assets. Accumulated depreciation was calculated to arrived at the
determinednet book value of the assets. Depreciation is now recorded annually at rates calculated
to write-off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building - 2% diminishing balance
Computer equipment - 40% diminishing balance
Equipment & furnishings — 20% diminishing balance
Leasehold improvements - 20% straight line

Additions during the year are depreciatedat one-half their normal rate and no depreciation is
taken in the year of disposition.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial statements.
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SUNSHINE VALLEY CHILDCARE SOCIETY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Review Engagement Report)

MARCH 31, 2014

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Accumulated Net Net
Cost Depreciation 2014 2013

Land 113 10,340 $ $ 10,340 $ 10,340
Building 227,098 71,697 155,401 158,572
Computer equipment 28,244 26,709 1,535 2,558
Equipment & furnishings 125,571 109,610 15,961 19,616
Leasehold improvements 9,723 ' 9,723

$ 400,976 $ 217,739 $ 183,237 $ 191,086

4. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUNDS
Internally restricted funds are surplus funds of the Society that have been set aside for a speci?c
purpose. These restrictions can be changed by a motion of the Board of Directors. Such a motion was
approved by the Board on November 13, 2007.

2014 2013

Sunshine Valley Child Care Society
Sick leave replacement reserve 9,131 $ 8,275
Vacation replacement reserve 4,600 3,249
P and building reserve 10.000 20,000

$ 23.731 $ 31.524

Boundary Child Care Resource and Referral
Sick leave replacement rescwe $ 1,500 $ 1,500
Vacation replacement reserve 2,000 2,000
Wage reserve 3,700 3,700
BCCRR net assets (see note below) 2,224 4,263

$ 9,424 $ 11,463

$ 33,155 $ 42,987

BCCRR net assets is an accumulation of net receipts over expenditures or (expenditures over receipts)
since the beginning of operations.

Beginning balance $ 4,263 $ 6,347
itures over receipts capital assets purchases 55 (2.0391 $ (2,0841

Endin balance $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ?nancial statements

Net

39
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The Corporation of the Cig of Grand Forks

AUG1 1 2015 LICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTSTATUS 1L0I’ /*0 / 6

be by July 31, 2015 at City Hall for consideration for tax exemption
yeah

Name of applica

Mailing

Civic Address of the Property(s)
For Which the Exemption is being applied

Legal Description of the Property(s)

Contact pe

Title

Telephone Numberl50- ?2,—;4o2Email Address

Total B 0

Most Current Financial Statement must be attached to this form.

Other sources of funding:

on next page
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The Corgoration of the City of Grand Forks

Describe your organization. Include a short history of your organization and briefly describe its goals
and objectives. (Attach a se rate sheet if )

How does your organization benefit the Community of Grand Forks?

rized Sign
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Describe your organization. include a short histary of your arga?LZ_aiio?-and brie?y E§F:‘-$Cf"5b€its 9023
33.and Qbjectives, (Attach a separate shaet if necessary")

Haw daes yaur orgarvizatia? benafit {he Cfrmrnunity of Csrand Facts?

Signature
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GRAND FORKS AUXILIARY TO THE BOUNDARY HOSPITAL SOCIETY

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(unaudited - see Notice to Reader)

2014 2013

REVENUE

Tlni? store 35 212,245 $ 226,976
Gift bars 1,761 1,905
Memberships 430 450
Donations 2,994 1,672
Provincialsales tax commissions 353
Interest 2,542 3,250

220,325 234,253

EXPENSES
Advertising and promotions 1,267 1,496
Amortization 2,360 2,006
Appreciation dirmer 1,958 2,212

Conferences and meetings 1,505 2,564
Dues and training 1,198 784
Garbage and janitorial 13,286 19,346

Hospital contributions 81,016 194,318
Insurance 2,466 2,366
Materials and supplies 5,606 4,635
Of?ce 1,298 1,877

Repairs and maintenance 4,082 4,723
Scholarshipsand donations 14,250 5,250
Telephone and utilities 6,400 6,336

35,641Contributions to capital - major roof repairs
172,333 247,913

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR $ 47,992 $ (13,660)
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GRAND FORKS AUXILIARY TO THE BOUNDARY HOSPITAL SOCIETY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

(unaudited - see Notice to Reader)

2014 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and short term deposits $ 416,023 $ 364,313

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (note 2) 232,957 199,676

$ 648,980 $ 563,989

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,910 $ 2,749
Provincial sales tax payable 2,197 -

4,107 2,749

NET ASSETS

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 232,957 199,676

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS 411,916 361,564

644,873 561,240

$ 648,980 $ 563,989

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

President
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GRAND FORKS AUXILIARY TO THE BOUNDARY HOSPITAL SOCIETY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(unaudited - see Notice to Reader)

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) The societyfollows the deferred method of recognition of externallydesignated contributionswhichmatches
the revenue to the related expenditure.

(b) Contibutionsand Pledges
Contributedcapital assets are recorded at fair value and the donatedportion shownas a deferred
contribution. The latter is taken into revenue at the same rate as the asset is amortized.

Contributedmaterial and services are not recorded in the ?nancial statements.

Pledges receivableare recorded when received.

Revenue Recognition - Donations
The cut-o?‘ date for donations is the same as the cut—offdate for receipts issuedin a year, and is based
on the postage date on the envelope for mail, or the date the donation is received.

(0)

Legacies, or bequests are recorded when received.

Property, Equipment and Amortization
Property and equipment acquired during the year are written off as an expenditure during the year and
capitalized through the investmentin capital assets account.

(d)

Property and equipment’are recorded at cost and are amortizedover their respective useful livesusingthe
straight line method at the following annual rates:

Building 1%
Equipment and furnishings 20%

Additions during the year are amortized at one-half their normal rate and no amortization is recorded
during the year of disposition.

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Net
Cost Amortization 2014

Land $ 34,182 $ $ 34,182
Building 218,679 20,958 197,721
Equipment and furnishings 5,364 4,310 1,054

129 129Incorporation costs

$ 258,354 $ 25,397 $ 232,957

Net

2013

$ 34,182
164,088

1,406

$ 199,676

NOTES TO
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Title:

udgek

The Corporation of the City of Grand Forks

APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTSTATUS

Note: Application must be received by August 1st at City Hall for consideration for tax exemption i
nthe following year.

Name of

Mailing address

Civic Address of the Property(s) .

For Which the Exemption is being applied 775‘? 14%

Legal Description of the Property(s)

Contact person:

Telephone Num mail

Total B

Most Current FinancialStatementmust be attached to this form.

Other sources of

/cont’d on next page

73¢»,-, H2/,
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éAutéorizedI £1"
ase?hy

The Corporation of the Cig of Grand Forks

Describe your organization. Include a short history of your organization and brieflydescribe its goals
and objectives. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

How does your organization benefit the Community of Grand Forks?

Signatu rag?’/
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Hope

Vets Transition Progra

Canuck Place Children

1 cx ‘YouthTrack 8: Field (Legion Foundation - "Track 8:

2 cx ‘Law Enforcement Torch Run (Special Plympics BC)

Oct

500.00

000.00

‘Sept.18 Ck.6

Royal Canadian Legion Br.59 Box 836

Donations 2014
(c = Completed x=mailentries)

,=Bound.Emer.Transition House S

3 C G.F.Pipes & Drums 1,000.00 ;Jun.28

5 C Boundary Women's Coaiation S 500.00 .28 Ck.59

Boundary Community Hospice Assoc. S
7 C Search & Rescue 5 1, Nov.10 %

Ck.80
C GirlGuides S 500.00 ,Nov.10 §Ck.81

9 c ‘G.F.Food Bank $ 1,000.00

11 C %BoundaryMuseum S 500.00 iNov.10 ;Ck.78

C Xmas Dinner Ck.76

13 C Xmas Hamper 2,000.00 Ck.77

Whispers of (Andre) 5 500.00 Nov.10 ‘Ck.
84-5 C BMX S 500.00 Dec.10

ranha Swimmers S 500.00 ;Dec.10 %
Ck.92

17 » cx EBCProfessional Fire Fighters’ Burn Fund

18 cx ?PALSAutism School Society 5 500.00 iSept.18 f Ck.
6419 cx m s 5

20 cx 's Hospice

2 Field") 500.00 Sept.18 Ck.60

S 500.00 lsept.18 iCk.62

23 C §Thanksgiving Dinner at Senior's Center S 1,100.00 Nov.7 .‘Ck.
8624 C ichristina LakeFire & Rescue S 1,000.00 Dec.10 Ck.94

20,100.00 3
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Grand Forks Branch #59

BALANCE SHEET
LIABILITIESAND BRANCH SURPLUS (de?cit)

As at December 31st 2014

CURRENTLIABILITIES
Bank Operating Loan/Overdraft
Dues Received in Advance
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Per Capita Taxes Payable
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
GST 8. PST Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $

LONGTERMDEBT
Mortgage Payable $
Debentures Payable $
Other Long Term Debt $

TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT $
Less: Principal Payments Due Within One Year $

NET LONG TERM DEBT $

TOTAL LIABILITIES $

BRANCHSURPLUS Ide?citi

Balance Beginning of period $
Add:
Branch Net Pro?t/(Loss) for the Year $

END TOTAL BRANCH SURPLUS (de?cit) $

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND BRANCHSURPLUS(de?cit) 3

Sheet 2 of2

Current
Year

1,987.21

643.81

14,453.30

14,453.30

314,400.37

18,380.15

332,760.52

347,233.82

mes 999999 eaeeeeeemenea

$

$

$

5

Previous
Year

10,324.00
1,827.81

2,040.77

1,150.11

15,342.69

15,342.69

317,066.54

(2,666.17)

314,400.37

329,743.05

9,620.00
2,002.28
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Grand Forks Branch #59

BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS

As at December 31st 2014

QURRENTASSETS

Cash and Bank Account

Short Term Investments

Accounts Receivable

Inventory: Liquor
Draught Beer
Bottled Beer,
Cider, Coolers and Wine
Can Beer (Off Sales)
Bar Drinks and Food
Breakopen Tickets
Legion Supplies
Other Inventories

Prepaid Expenses Per Capita Tax

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LONG TERMINVESTMENTS
Replacement Reserve Funds

CAPITAL ASSETS [SCHEDULE l![
Land
Building
Equipment
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Leasehold Improvements
Other Capital Assets

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

Less: Accumulated Amortization Expense

NETCAPITAL ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Current
Year

$

$

$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$ 67,887.42

3

83,635.20
111,414.79
62.281.83
22,014.58

$ 279,346.40

$

$ 279,346.40

$ 347!233.82

EH %%%€/9%£9€?9969(-19 $69%£?%%

Previous
Year

37,166.81

14,506.74

66,365.74

83,635.20
111,265.00
46,312.75
22,014.58

263,377.32

263,377.32

329,743.06

35,662.56

14,631.49

9,610.53

816.83
2,469.38

677.21
599.72
140.24
468.10

1,465.16
1,346.20

598.60
1,602.43

561.65
4.66.
33207 24
384.72

1,487.13
1,346.20
1,678.67

6,359.22
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plicant: _._.._ Forks
, , , ,, , ,, ,,,

,,,,,,__Cente

,, ,, ,, V0

NOTE: weare now incorgorated and our incorgorated name is ”Grand ForksSeniors‘ Socieg"

for: --- .- ...-..-,. -ra....._....

Title: President

mber: ,._ ,._ ,.__
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,,,_,_ _ ,-,_ ,,, Seniors

,-, Came:

, , ,_._ , .,_ _ ,_._
,_,ity.

Authorized

The Corporation of the cigg of Grand Forks

Describe your organization. Include a short history of your organization and brie?y describe its goals
and objectives. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

Since 1974 we have nrovided a nlace for to meet and eniov social activities. We have

ongoing Whist and Cribbage Card Games. Bowling. Crafts and Quilting. and a Senior’s

Choir.

How does your organization benefit the Community of Grand Forks?

A great hall for the communitv to use for n25. weddings. funerals (Celebration of Lifel.

dances. familv reunions. adult and childrens’ birthday parties. We have a verv reasonable

rental rate. so all neonle can afford our facil

Signature
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gariiorsCenter Branch 68
Income Statement 01 Jan. 2015 to 30 Apr, 2015

REVENUE

Revenue
#000 Non-Guar.Equlty Shares 1... 0.00
#000 Golden Chequing 0.00
#001 Busin.Cheq.-Grants Act.5... 0.00
#002 Comm.BuiIderCheq.557140 0.00
#003 Business Chequlng-Gami... 0.00
#008 Bond Buster 460394 0.00
Building Account 0.00
Kitchen Account 0.00
Grant - City of GF 0.00
Total Bank 0.00
Dividends 5.99
Interest 0.00
Total - interest/Dividends 5.99
Crib 742.00
Whist 0.00
Carpet Bowling 171.00
Donations 57.00
Quilters/Crafts 205.00
Quilt Connection 16.00
Modem Quilting 23.00
Quilting - Loose Threads 55.00
Choir 202.00
Dances 531.00
Coffee Fund 50.00
Hall Rentals 2,900.00
Rental - Security Deposits 900.00
Rental - Sound System 75.00
Kung Fu 273.00
Not Used 0.00
Membership Dues 2013 0.00
Membership Dues 2015 2,340.00
Miscellaneous Revenue 296.00
Total — General Revenue

Total Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE 8,841.99

EXPENSE

General 8- Administrative Expo...
Bad Cheques 0,00
HallRenovations & Materials 134.79
Sound System o,oo
Coffee Fund Transfer to General .. 0.00
Insurance 2,236.00
Bank Service Charge o,oo
Of?ce Supplies 100,34
JanitorialSupplies 144,86
Janitorial Services 1,200.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 612,04
Ret.Sec.Dep. for Sound System 0.00
Returned Security Deposit 600.00
Returned Rent 50,00
VAB Enterprizes - Cleaning/Sup... 0.00
west Kootenay seniors Associati... 57,50
Senior Citizens of BC (Provincial) 525.00
Seniors Games 0,00
Convention Expense 0.00
Rent Expense 0,00
Expense from Damage Deposit 0.00
Repair & Maintenance 25.50
Fire Protection o,oo
Grand Forks Glass o_oo

Printed On: 13 2015

8,836.00
8,841.99
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genius CenterBranch 68
lncoineStatement 01 Jan, 2015 to soApr, 2015

Membership Cards
Boundary Securitieslcounterforoe
Gas - Fortis 439.75
Telephone - Telus 173.93
Utilities - E|ect.,Water, Sewer 665.94
Total - Utilities
Travel &Expense
Petty Cash
Kitchen Account
To Correct Aoct.3550
To correct act 4179

Total - General 8. Admin.Expe...

TOTAL EXPENSE

NETINCOME

Frintod On: 13 Jun, 2015

2000
0.00

1,279.62
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

2,600.00

3,366.10

9,586.15

-744.16

Page
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TheComorationof theQty of GrandForks
JUL1320

15APPLICATIONFOR TAX EXEMPT STATUS FOR

Note: Application must be received by August 1st at City Hall for consideration for tax
exemption in the following year.

Name of applicant: Phoenix Manor Society
(formerly Abbey?eld Centennial House Society)

Mailingaddress: Box 902, Grand Forks, BC VOH1H0

CivicAddress of the Property(s)
For Which the Exemption is being applied for: 876 — 72"‘Ave. Grand Forks BC

Legal Description of the Property(s): Parcel B Portion (KF1958) Block45 Plan 72 DL 108

Contact person: Homer Good
Title: Chairman
Telephone number: 250-442-5302

Total Budet: $143,100

Most Current Financial Statement must be attached to this form.

Other sources of funding:

The residents of PHOENIXMANORSOCIETYprovide all of our income through their
monthly rents. We originally budgeted for 80% occupancy. Currently our break-even is
about 90% occupancy due to increasing costs. In July 2013 we had to raise the rents to
the residents and re?nanced our mortgage to reduce the payment to cover our increasing
operating costs. This is a severe burden to some of the residents, who are all single senior
citizens, many with limitedincomes.

Describe your oranization. Include a short history of your organization and brie?y
describe its goals and objectives. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary.)

PHOENIXMANORSOCIETYhad its beginnings as Abbey?eld Centennial House Society.

Abbey?eld Centennial House Society was incorporated in 1997 with the mandate of
establishing an "Abbey?eld Home" in Grand Forks. Pioneer Village Society donated its assets
to Abbey?eld Centennial House Society to make establishing the home a possibility. Those
assets were all from non-governmental sources. With a huge amount of volunteer hours by
the directors and many community donations the home was built. The home can
accommodate ten single seniors. The residents have a safe and secure home including
meals, in a non-institutional setting. This provides the good nutritionand companionship that
is commonly lacking for single seniors.

The name of the society was changed to PHOENIXMANORSOCIETYin 2013 when the
local society disaf?liated from the Canadian Abbey?eld Society for ?nancial reasons.
PHOENIXMANORSOCIETYretainsthe original mandate and core values. It is not for pro?t
and is a registered charity. Volunteers cany out all management, routine maintenance,
improvements and social activities. The Officers and Directors of PHOENIXMANOR
SOCIETYare all volunteers and receive no

CE!

TJONO
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How does your organization bene?t the Community of Grand Forks?

PHOENIXMANORSOCIETYprovides a quality senior's residence and the only. not for pro?t,
supportive care facility, in Grand Forks. This allows our residents to continue living in the
community with dignity while avoiding the necessity of residing in a public care facility at
substantial public expense. The home was built and is operated using local suppliers and
trades persons whenever reasonably possible. Local seniors are given preference for
accommodation. PHOENIXMANORSOCIETY employs ?ve local persons. This means that
there are up to ?fteen persons contributing to local business who might wellotherwise have to
reside outside of Grand Forks.

Manyother, not for pro?t, supportive care homes in BC are given tax exemptions.

The board of PHOENIX MANOR SOCIETY continuesin its goal of providing affordable
seniorshousing in a non-institutionalenvironment.Assistance from the City of Grand Forks
in offsettingsome of our cost increasesthrough tax exemption will assist in achieving our
long-termsuccess. Tax exemptions in the past have contributed greatlyto our ?nancial
health.We urge council to continue to recognize the contribution of this home and its seniors
throughgranting a tax exemption for 2016

Good
Chairman
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- 126 -

979 .
346 .

1,915 -

649 .
50,313 -

117,725 .

PHOENIXMANORSOCIETY 5“TEME"T

STATEMENTOF OPERATIONS
FORTHEYEARENDEDDECEMBER31, 2014

5 149,110 5: S S 149,110 5 1
777 777
272 330 602

40 - 40
- 126

150,199 126

55a - - 550. 17,001 - 17,031
3,470 - - 3,470
2,766 — - 2,766

208 - - 283
6,454 - - 6,454

19,310 — - 19,810
3,366 - - 3,366
5,694 - - 5,694

1,919 - 1,919
321 . 321

40 - 40
8,467 - 8,467

251 — 251

- 60,373

134,807

Replacement
Operating Capital Asset Reserve Total Total

Fund Fund Fund 2014 2013

REVENUES
Tenant rent 50,

175Phoenix Foundation 430
Patronage dividend and interest 705
MembersDues 35
Disposition of capital assets

330 150,655 151,345

EXPENDITURES
Advertising 1,215
Amortization 16,885
Bookkeeping fees 3,779
Cable 2,803
Dues and fees 908
Electricity, water and sewer 5,274
Food 18,1 12
Heating and hot water 3,229
Insurance 5,333
Legal fees 155
Mortgage interest 2,898
Office supplies and service charges 559
Property taxes 40
Repairs and maintenance 7,317
Security 257
Service contracts, cleaning and
gardening 979 1,316

Supplies 346 383
Telephone 1,975 1,925
Tenant entertainment {:49 589
Wages and benefits 54,988

17,081 127,965

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY)OF REVENUES
OVEREXPENDITURES $ 32,473 S (16,955) S 330 5 15,848 S 23,380

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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- s 742 s 1,314

37 627 64,309

35,369 65,613.T

PHOENIXMANORSOCIETY
STATEMENTor FINANCIALPOSITION
DECEMBER31 2014

ASSETS

5 12,152

12,152

$ 12,152

5 742

742

11.410

11,410

406,516

5 405,515 $

37,627

37.627

368,889

w

55,184

55,184

.184

55,184

STATEMENT

5 12,152

12,152

55,184

406,516

5 4.-73,352

368,889

66,594

435,483

Replacement
Operating Capital Asset Reserve Total Total

Fund Fund Fund 2014 2013

CURRENTASSETS
Cash 5 16.

34416,344
INVESTMENTS- Note1 48,623
CAPITALASSETS- Notes 2 420,

2915 485,258

LIABILITIES

CURRENTLIABILITIES
Accounts payable - Note 3

LONG-TERMDEBT- Note 4

FUND BALANCES

INVESTMENTIN CAPITALASSETS 368,889 355,983
UNRESTRICTED - Statement B 63,652

419, 635

5 12,152 $ 406,516 5 55,1114 5 473,552 5485258

APPROVEDON BEHALFOF THE

M Director

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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The Corporation of the Cig of Grand Forks

SEP25 201
5

APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPT STATUS
967;’. Z5, Ls.-;

, , _ _
Note: Application must be received by at City Hall for cons: eration for tax exemption
in the following year.

Name of applicant:

Mailing address: Po 15 E9’

Civic Address of the Property(s)
For Which the Exemption is being applied for:

Legal Description of the Property(s)

Contact person

Title: /4301

Telephone Nu ail Address:

Total Budget:

Most Current Financial Statement must be attached to this form

Other sources of funding

/cont'd on next page
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Com

o Commencing at a point in the westerly boundary of Lot 2, District Lo
t520, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP53800, located at 7680 Donaldson Drive and

described as follows — distant 28.6 metres from the most southerly
corner of said Lot 2: thence northerly following in the westerly
boundary for 25.1 metres, thence easterly, perpendicular to the said
westerly boundary for 35.05 metres more or less to intersection with
the easterly boundary of said Lot 2, thence southerly following in the
said easterly boundary for 25.1 metres, thence westerly, perpendicular
to the said westerly boundary for 35.05 metres more or less to the
point of commencement and containing 880 square metres more or
less as shown outlined in bold on a sketch attached hereto marked as
Schedule “H”(Jehovah’s Witnesses Church).

c That portion of Lot 1, D.L. 520 SDYD, Plan KAP77684, measuring 193
square meters on the northerly portion of the lot, and located at 2495 —

76"‘Avenue, as shown outlined on a sketch attached hereto marked
as Schedule ‘‘I’’(First Baptist Church Congregation)

Pursuant to Section 224(2)(h) of the Community Charter, there shall be
exempt from taxation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 with
respect to land and improvements, the following parcel of land:

0 LOTA, District Lot 520, S.D.Y.D., Plan EEP11735, located at 7649 -

22"“Street (Interior Health Authority).

Pursuant to Section 224(2)(i) of the mun Charter there shall be
exempt from taxation for the fiscal year ended December 31st, 2016 with
respect to land and improvements, the following parcels of land:

o Lot 1, District Lot 380, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP54909 located at 7230 -

21st Street (Grand Forks Curling Club);

Pursuant to Section 224(2)(a) of the Community Charter, there shall be
exempt from taxation for the fiscal year ended December 31st, 2016 with
respect to land and improvements, the following parcels of land:

0 Lot 5, Block 10, District Lot 108, S.D.Y.D., Plan 23, located at 366
Market Avenue (Grand Forks Masonic Building Society); and

o Lot A, District Lot 108, S.D.Y.D., Plan 38294, located at 978 - 72"
“Avenue (Sunshine Valley Little Peoples Centre);

o Lot 8, Block 25, Plan 23, District Lot 108, S.D.Y.D. located at 686 -

72"”Avenue (Slavonic Seniors Citizens Centre).
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Schedule “B”
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Schedule “C”
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Schedule “D”

B.C. LAND SU/-?VEYOR'8CERTIFICATE
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Schedule “E”
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”
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Schedule “G”

Lot 1, District Lot 108, S.D.Y.D. Plan KAP45199
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Schedule “H”

That Portion Lot 2, District Lot 520, S.D.Y.D., Plan KAP53800
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REQUESTFORDECISION
REGULARMEETING

To: Mayor and Council

From: Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 13, 2015

Subject: Bylaw 2020 to Establish Community Works Reserve Fund

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL give final reading to Community Works
Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw 2020, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

The City signed a renewed agreement for the Community Works Fund, also known as Gas Tax, in 2014.
The new agreement expanded the Eligible Project Categories to include many capital projects that were
not eligible under the previous agreement. As a result, the accounting requirements have changed and
the establishment of a reserve is necessary.

Bylaw 2020 was presented to Committee of the Whole on August 17, 2015. The bylaw received first
three readings at the September 14, 2015 Regular meeting of Council. Bylaw 2020 is now presented for
final reading.

Benefits or Impacts of the Recommendation:

General: Provide efficient accounting of funds received, interest earned and capital
projects expenditures as well as simplify annual reporting of fund activities.

Strategic Impact Segregated funds will be clearly identified and directed to local priorities that fall
within one of the Eligible Project categories pursuant to the Community Works
Fund Agreement.

PolicyILegislation Community Charter S. 188 and S. 189

Public Sector Accounting (PSA) Handbook

Community Works Fund Agreement

Attachments DRAFTBylaw 2020

Recommendation: RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL give final reading to Community Works
Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw 2020, 2015.
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REQUESTFORDECISION
- REGULARMEETING—

v,\\kN!

OPTIONS: 1. RESOLVED THAT COUNCILRECEIVES THE STAFF REPORT

2. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL DOES NOT ACCEPT THE STAFF REPORT

3. RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL REFERS THE MATTER BACK TO STAFF FOR
FURTHER INFORMATION.

K5/MMOI
Department Heéd or CAO Chief ’ini's/tr»a’tive‘O?Tcer\.
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